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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE DEC28°21 4t11:45 RCYD

COMMISSIONER TDD Access: Relay NH
Jared 5. Chicoine 1-800-735-2964

Tel. (603) 271-3670
DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

Christopher J. Elims, Jr, FAX No. 271-1526

Website:

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY www.energy.nh.gov

21 8. Fruit St., Suite 10
Concord, N.H. 03301-2429

December 28, 2021
His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NH Energy) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE
contract with Southwestern Community Services, (VC #177511), Keene, NH, in the amount of
$203,250 to supplement the Agency’s Weatherization Assistance Program (WAP), effective January
12, 2022, through December 31, 2022, upon approval of Governor and Executive Council. 100%
Federal Funds. (LIHEAP-US DHHS)

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Energy, Fuel Assistance - _ FY2022
02-52-52-520010-18870000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $203,250.00

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE because of the US Department of Energy’s (US DOE) grant
guidance '

(10 CFR 440.15) giving Community Action Agencies preferred status for the Weatherization
Assistance Program due to their non-profit status, their role providing a range of services to clients
eligible for WAP, and their historical performance delivering the weatherization program.

NH Energy is responsible for administering New Hampshire’s statewide Weatherization Assistance
Program (WAP). The objective of the program is to reduce energy consumption and the impact of
energy costs in low-income households. Priority is given to the elderly, disabled, households with
children, and households with high-energy usage. The funding in this contract will supplement WAP
work,

The Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP-US DHHS) funding in this contract
will allow the Community Action Agency (CAA) to effectively and efficiently increase the number of
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homes receiving heating system improvements and/or full weatherization services in the program year
which begins on January 1, 2022. NH Energy estimates that approximately twenty-seven (27)
additional homes will be assisted in the CAA’s service area as a result of the supplemental funding.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
contract,

Respectfully submitted, -

-~
1

Jared Chicoine
Commissioner, New Hampshire Department of Energy
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
New Hampshire Department of Energy 21 South Fruit Street, Suite 10
Concord. New Hampshire 03301

1.3 Contractor Name . 1.4 Contractor Address

Southwestern Community Services, [nc. 63 Community Way

Keene, NH 03431

1.5 Contracror'Phonc 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation -
Number 02-52-52-520010-18870000- December 31, 2022 $203,250.00
(603) 352-7512 074-500587 52BWP22

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Kirk Stone, Weatherization Program Manager (603) 271-3670

1.11  Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

: - Beth Daniels, Chief Executive Officer
m&m_/ Date: I&/go/a,

1.13 . State Agency Signature 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
. Jared Chicoine, Commissioner
TN Date: / a’lk&éq New Hampshire Department of Energy

I.l" Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if epplicable)

By: W L On: (Z/2212

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C ltem number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor [nitials BD
Date Ja/20/!



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
(“Contractor”) to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference (“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement 1o the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Govemor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required. in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 (“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the eventthat this Agreement does not become
cffective, the Statc shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary. all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. [n the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source t0 the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and mote particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
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compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those

. liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7

through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes. laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state. county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited 1o, civil rights and equal

.employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is

funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue 10 implement these regulations,
The Contractor shail also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws. T

6.2 During the term of this Agreememt, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.

6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all ru1és,_ regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement. '

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the "Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to -
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement.  This
provision shall survive termination of this Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative, In the event of any
dispute conceming the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EYENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

" 8.1 Any on€ or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services sar.lsfactorlly at on
schedule,

§.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
B.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may |

take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days afier gwmg the
Contractor notice of termination:

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defanlt and suspending all payments to be made under this
Algreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
ow¢ to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by rcason of
any Event of Default; and/or
"8.2.4 give the Contractor a writien notice specifying the Event of
Default. treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies al law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
Ain part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Siaie’s discretion, deliver 10 the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifieen {15) days after the date
of termination, a repon (“Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Repert described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In eddition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this

© Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,

files, formulae, surveys, maps, chars, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents. all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be retuned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.

10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the Siate.

1. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employecs, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its emplovees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State,
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcentract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a

party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omission of the
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hercby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2.000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.

14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on pelicy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal{s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10} days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
. renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants.that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from. the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers'
Compensation”).

15.2- To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers’ - Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
artached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Waorkers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or empioyee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable Siate of New Hampshire
Workers Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement,
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16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in & United States
Post Office addressed ro the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

I17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18, CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors

“and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording

chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent. and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A} and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed 10 confer any such benefit.

21, HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shail in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference. :

23. SEVERABILITY. Inthe event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by 8 court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary 1o any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreemem, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

2 CFR 200, as amended, (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards), 10 CFR 440 dated February 1, 2002 (Weatherization Assistance
Program), the New Hampshire Weatherization Assistance Program (NHWAP) State Plan, NHWAP
Policies and Procedures Manual (P&PM), and NHWAP Field Guide are all considered part of this
contract by inclusion and shall be legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract.
The New Hampshire Department of Energy {NH Energy) reserves the right to use any legal remedy
at its disposal including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs, withholding of funds, suspension
of agency personnel, disbarment of agency personnel, disharment of agencies and/or subcontractors
from present or future contracts, and such other legal remedies as determined to be appropriate by the .
New Hampshire Department of Justice in the enforcement of rules and regulations pertaining to the
Weatherization Program.

An audit shall be made at the end of the Contractor’s fiscal year in accordance with 2 CFR 200,
Subpart F - Audit Requirements. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and
expenditures by contract or grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor’s fiscal year. The
Contractor shall utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least-
every four years. .

The audit report shall include a schedule of the prior year's questioned costs along with a response
regarding the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters
written as a result of the audit along with the audit report shall be forwarded to the NH Energy within
one month of the time of receipt by the Contractor accompanied by an action, if applicable, for each
finding or questioned cost. '

The following paragraph shall be added to paragraph 9 of the general provisions:

“9.3 All negotiated contracts (except those of $5,000 or less) awarded by the New Hampshire
Department of Energy to the Contractor shall allow the New Hampshire Department of Energy, the
US Department of Energy, Health and Human Services, the Comptroller General of the United States,
or any duly authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
Subgrantee or their subcontractors, which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purpose of
making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.”

The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principals.

Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the NH Energy and the
Contractor for 3 (three) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for
awards that are renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or
annwal financial report, as stated in 2 CFR 200,333 - Retention Requirements for Records,

CLOSE QUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be
submitted to the State within forty-five (45) days of the completion date (Agreement Block 1.7).
Exhibit A
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7. The following paragraphs shall be added to the general provisions: .

“25. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING. It is understood and agreed between the parties
that no portion of the “Grant” funds may be used for the purpose of obtaining additional federal funds
under any other law of the United States, except if authorized under that taw.”

“26. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS. The following are attached and signed: Certification
Regarding Drug-Free Workplace Requirements; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification
Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Marters; Centification Regarding the
Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmenial Tobacco
Smoke; Assurance of Compliance Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and
Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.”

“27. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT. All contracts and subgrants in excess of $2,000.00 for
construction or repair shall include a-provision for compliance with Copeland “Anti-Kickback™ Act
(18 USC 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act
provides that each contractor, subcontract or subgrantee shall be prohibited from inducing, by any
means, any person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any
part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The subgrantee should report all
suspected violations to the New Hampshire Department of Energy.”

“28. PROCUREMENT. Subgrantee shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D Post
Federal Award Requirements — Procurement Standards with special emphasis on financial
procurement (2 CFR 200 Subpart F — Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200
Subpart D - Post Federal Award Requirements — Property Standards.)”

Exhibit A
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
’ EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., hereinafter “the Contractor,” agrees to utilize the Building
Weatherization Program (BWP) funds, which are the subject of this contract and which have their origin
in the federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP). to provide eligible clients with
weatherization services, including heating system repair and replacement services, which meet the
requirements and standards for LIHEAP weatherization work as modified and approved in the FY22
New Hampshire LIHEAP State Plan. [n addition, ali work completed using BWP funds will be in

" accordance with the fiscdl requirements of regulations set forth in 2 CFR 200 as amended. and will be
guided and implemented as directed by the New Hampshire Department of Energy (NH Energy) in this
contract and, from time to time, in BWP Subgrantee Notices or other communications. The Contractor
agrees 1o revise BWP practices and procedures to incorporate instructions from NH Energy.

Contraclor agrees to incorporate changes to the NH Building Weatherization Program as prescribed by
NH Energy to improve program delivery. Contractor further agrees to perform all weatherization
services in a manner that will successfully interact with utility administered energy efficiency programs
for low income households in order to provide the best collaborative services for those households.

This BWP contract period; to be known as “BWP22,” will commence upon approval of this contract by
the Governor and Executive Council, and will have a completion date of December 31, 2022, also
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

BWP funds, which are the subject of this contract, shall not be expended for health and safety purposcs.
However, in projects where BWP money is used without any federal Weatherization Assistance
Program (WAP) money involved — in other words, where there is no money for the installation of hcalth
and safety measures — then that BWP project may include the cost of incidental repair measures (see the
NH Policies and Procedures Manual) if, by so doing, the cumulative SIR for the entire project is.not
brought down to below 1. . : .

No portion of the BWP funding in this contract is set aside for training and technical assistance
(T&TA). However, Contractor may choose to expend some or all of the designated administrative
funds on T&TA activities. Appropriate back-up and justification for the use of those funds will be
required by NH Energy prior to reimbursement.

During the contract period, the Contractor agrees to complete weatherization services on the number of
units that is the result of dividing the Contractor’s PY22 BWP allocation by $7,500. NH Encrgy
understands that the actual number of BWP completions will likely differ from that number duc to the
unpredictability of heating system costs, etc., but NH Energy expects to sce monthly BWP payment
requests from the Contractor in order to monitor BWP spending progress. Unit completions will be
done to the standards and expectations presented in LIHEAP weatherization guidance, this contract, and
the NH WAP Policies and Procedures Manual, 2019 edition, section on BWP management.

a. The number of dwelling units and the amount of funds to be expended shall conform to the
provisions of this contract. NH Energy reserves the right to review progress under this contract
at any time and may utilize information from such reviews to alter dwelling unit goals and funds
to be expended.

Exhibit B
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b. All funds provided to the Contractor under this agreement must be expended by December 3]
2022,

Effective April 1, 2015, all work performed.under the federal Weatherization Assistance Program
(WAP) in New Hampshire must meet the minimum specifications defined in the US Department of
Energy’s Quality Work Plan (QWP) and the associated Standard Work Specifications (SWS). While
BWP work is to be managed mostly under DOE rules, and is therefore not subject to all of the same
specifications and requirements as WAP work, Contractor will manage BWP work in a manner which
provides clients with weatherization outcomes similar to those achieved under WAP guidance whenever
possible. The occasions when WAP rules must apply to BWP work are set out in this document
(Exhibit B).

Client eligibility for BWP-funded weatherization work should generally be the same as for WAP-
funded weatherization work: client income is to be no greater than 60% of the state median income
(SM1).

BWP money may be “leveraged” (used in combination) with any other weatherization funding source.
If WAP/DOE money is used in a dwelling weatherization project, and if the Subgrantee wishes to count
that project as a WAP/DOE completion, then the project must have at least one energy conservation
measure that meets the SIR test, that measure {or those measures) must be paid for with WAP dollars,
and the final inspection of the whole job must be done by a current BPI certified Quality Control
Inspector (QCI) and declared “WAP complete, ready for reimbursement.”

BWP money may be used for either full dwelling weatherization upgrades or for heating system
improvements alone. Contractor is obligated under this contract to expend at least 50% of the
contracted BWP amount on heating system repairs and/or replacements.
a. The PY22 BWP package of forms (see item 12b, below) for reporting BWP expenditures will
include columns to make ciear whenever BWP money was used:
i. for restoration of heating services (repair or replacement of inoperable heating
equipment),
ii. for prevention of heating system service loss (repair or replacement to avoid
approaching failure), or
iti. for supplementing or fully supporting a whole house weatherization project, with space
" toreport when heating system work paid for with BWP funds is part of that whole
house upgrade.

. The maximum amount of BWP money to be spent on any one dwelling project without an approved

waiver is $12.000. If the BWP budget for any one project must exceed that amount, a waiver must be
received from NH Energy. NH Energy will review all waiver requests promptly and will provide
approval when possible. However, applying the expenditure guidelines in the FY22 NH LIHEAP State
Plan, NH Energy will not approve total BWP expenditures on any one dwelling weatherization project
that exceed $15,000. This total is cumulative, summing the BWP expenditures made during all visits to
that dwelling (including amounts from program years in which the name of the LIHEAP-funded
weatherization program may have been different). .

. BWP production includes:

a. Weatherization upgrades which are commensurate with a work plan developed from a thorough
dwelling energy audit and a TREAT model prepared by a qualified (BP1-certified) Building
Analyst or Energy Auditor or Quality Control Inspector who has developed the work plan (the
energy conservation measures — ECMs — to be installed) using either the “benefit/cost ratio”

Exhibit B
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(B/C) methodology as defined by the utilities’ Home Energy Assistance (HEA) program or the
“savings to investment ratio” (SIR) methodology as defined by the US DOE for use in WAP.
The SIR methodology must be used to justify the installation of any ECMs which are to be paid
for with WAP funds.

Final inspections which determine:

i. whether the project’s work plan was appropriate and complete, taking into account the
methodology — B/C or SIR ~ used by the energy auditor to select the ECMs to be
installed, the pre-weatherization condition of the building, etc.

ii. whether that appropriate work plan was fully and effectively 1mp1emented in the
dwelling, prowdlng the client with a comprehensive energy-saving weatherization
outcome, or, in the case of heating system-only improvements, providing the client with
a safe and efficient and fully operational home heating system.

In projects where BWP money is used alongside WAP money in the same dwelling {(and there
may be other funding sources as well), that project’s ECMs which are to be paid for using BWP
andfor WAP funds must be completed using the WAP rules and standards, including the
installation of only those measures which individually achieve an SIR equal to or greater than |,
the use of a certified Quality Control Inspector to perform the final inspection. etc.

In projects where no WAP money is involved, the final BWP inspection may be performed by a
person holding a current BP! certification in at least one of the following areas: Building
Analyst, Energy Auditor, or Quality Conirol Inspector.

. Because BWP money is not WAP money, BWP money may be used in weatherization upgrades

to dwellings which have received WAP-funded or BWP-funded upgrades more recently than
the 15-year rolling time period which governs WAP re-weatherization by presenting a waiver
request to NH Energy. However:
i. re-weatherization should be done sparingly, remembering that there are thousands of
potential clients who have received no weatherization services at all;
ii. care should be taken, as always, to avoid even the appearance of favoritism;
iti. all BWP-funded second visits to previously weatherized dwellings, whether that
weatherization work was done with WAP or BWP or HEA funds, must be preceded by
receipt of an approved waiver from NH Energy.

12. The tracking of BWP jobs will include:

a.

Contractor preparation and maintenance of a client file on every BWP job. Contractor will
utilize a filing protocol which allows recovery of the file when checking future jobs against
previous weatherization work performed at that address, etc., even if no WAP money was used.
Future CAP agency WAP Directors need to be able to check on weatherization work completed

_in dwellings, even when WAP money was not involved.

The use of a separate BWP reimbursement request package/spreadsheet package supplied by
NH Energy. All jobs with any BWP money invested must be submitted for reimbursement on
the BWP sct of forms. If a particular job also includes the use of any WAP moncy, then that job
will have to be submitted for WAP reimbursement as well, using the WAP reimbursement
request forms. Therefore, if a single weatherization job uses funds from two different
weatherization funding sources managed by NH Encrgy, that job must be submitted to NH
Energy twice in order for it to be reimbursed for the correct amount from each source.

Exhibit B
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13. This agreement consists of the following documents: a completed P-37 form, and Exhibits A, B, C, D,
E.F,G, H, L andJ. All exhibits are incorporated herein by reference as if fully set forth herein.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
"EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

1n consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services set forth in Exhibit B. the State agrees to
pay the Contractor. Southwestern Community Services up to the total sum of:

$203,250.00  (which hereinafier is referred to as the “Contracted Amount™), of which
$ 10,163.00  is the maximum to be spent on BWP related administrative costs.
$193.087.00 (the balance) to be spent on weatherization activities (Program Activily).

Drawdowns from the total contracted amount will be paid to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to NH Energy. Disbursement of the contracted amount shall be
made in accordance with the procedures established by the State and 2 CFR 200.305(b) on an advance
basis: limited to minimum amounts needed: and be timed to be in accordance with the actual, immediate
cash requirements of the Contractor in carrying out the purpose of the program. The Contractor must
make timely payments to (sub)contractors in accordance with the contract provisions. Cantractor shall
submit a payment request to NH Energy for each month of the contract period using the forms to be
provided by NH Energy for that purpose. Payment requests from Contractor shall be received a1 NH
Energy no later than the 15" day of each month or the first business day following the 15" day.

. Administrative costs are provided in order to support a specified number of unit completions at minimal
standards. Administrative funds may be pro-rated by NH Energy if production unit compietions do not
meet expected production goals.

NH Energy will also be allowed. as a function of its administrative oversight, to modify contracted budget
amounts as necessary to ensure the efficient and effective operation of the contract as long as thesc

modified expenditures do not exceed the total “Contracted Amount”™ as specified above,

All obligations of the State. including the continuance of any payments, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds for the services to be provided.

Exhibit C
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D 41 Us.C.
701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace -
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1989, regulations were
amended and published as Part 11 of the May 25, 1990, Federal Register (pages 21681-21691), and require
certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors), prior to award, that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference,
sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which retiance is placed when the agency
awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form
should send it to: '

Commissioner, New Hampshire Department of Energy

21 S. Fruit Street, Suite 10, Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue 1o provide a drug-free workplace by:
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
' dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace

and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

{b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—

1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

€)) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
in the workplace; : :

(c) Makiﬁg it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph {a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will— - :

(1) " Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
Exhibits D thru H
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ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, cont’d

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(H Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is s0 convicted—

N Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or . ' :

2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

() Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (¢), (d). (¢). and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant. .

Place of Performance {street address, city, county, State, zip code) (list each location)

2 Industrial Park Drive
Concord, NH 03301

Check [] if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Southwestern Community Services, Inc, January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2022
Contractor Name Period Covered by this Certification

Beth Daniels, Chief Executive Officer
Name and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

Geth Banile 12/30/a1

Contractor Representative Signature Date

Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections [.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Community Services Block Grant
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
HRRP Program
BWP Program

Contract Period: January 1, 2022, to December 31, 2022
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
~ Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor),

{2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for

‘ influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-I.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100.000 for each such failure.

m (Qﬂ/m/ ‘ Beth Daniels, Chief Executive Officer

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor’s Representative Title
Southwestern Community Services, Inc, / :9/:70/3 /
Contractor Name Date

Exhibits D thru H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in
Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING bEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification )

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

{2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation in this covered transaction. 1f necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy (NH Energy) determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall
disqualify such person from participation in this transaction,

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
Energy determined to enter into this transaction. 1fitis later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
Federal Government, may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH Energy to whom this
proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification
was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

{5) The terms “covered transaction.” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered transaction,”

e ” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,”

“participant,” “person,
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shatl not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH Energy.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions,” provided by NH Energy, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a centification of a prospective participant in a lower tier
covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the covered
transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to,
check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order
to render in good faith the cenification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary

. course of business dealings. ‘

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal government, NH Energy may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, cont'd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Marters - Primary Covered Transactions

(11)  The prospective primary panicipaﬁt certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals: :

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:

(b} have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal {contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction
or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property,

{c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b)
of this certification; and

{d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
- . transactions {Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default. ‘

(12)  Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification,
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).
)

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspensioﬁ, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions
(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
' cxcluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b} where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall artach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for
lower tier covered transactions.

\MKQM/ Beth Daniels, Chief Executive Officer

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor’s Representative Title
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. , / a/ JO/Q/
Contractor Name ' Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following

certification:

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

\ﬁm&aﬂlﬁl@ Beth Daniels, Chief Executive Officer

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor’s Representative Title

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. IQ/JO/QI

Contractor Name : . Date
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. NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
Public Law 103-227, Part C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guaraniee.

The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1,000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/grantee certifies that it will comply with the requirements
of the ‘Act.

The applicant/grantee further agrees that it will require the ianguage of this certification be included in any
subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all subgrantees shall certify accordingly.

Beth Daniels, Chief Executive Officer

Contractor Representative Signature Contractor’s Representative Title
Southwestern Community Scrvices, Inc. /51/ °?0/ Q;/
Contractor Name ' Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT 1

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
ASSURANCE OF COMPLIANCE NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY ASSISTED PROGRAMS

OMB Burden Disclosure Statement

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per respense,
including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data
needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this burden
estimate or any other aspect of this collection of infermation, including suggestions for reducing this burden, 1o
Office of Information Resources Management Policy, Plans, and Oversight, Records Management Division, HR-
422 - GTN, Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400), U.S. Department of Energy, 1000 independence Avenue,
S.W., Washington, DC 205835; and to the Office of Managément and Budget (OMB), Paperwork Reduction
Project (1910-0400), Washington, DC 20503,

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Hereinafter called the "Applicant") HEREBY AGREES to comply
with Title V1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88-352), Scction 16 of the Federal Energy Administration
Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-275), Section 401 of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-438), Title IX
of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318, Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L. 94-482),
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-
135), Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284), the Department of Energy Organization Act of
1977 (Pub. L. 95.91), the Energy Conservation and Production Act of 1976, as amended, (Pub. L. 94-385) and
Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 1040. In accordance with the above laws and regulations issued
pursuant thereto, the Applicant agrees to assure that no person in the United States shall, on the ground of racc,
color, national origin, sex, age. or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity in which the Applicant receives Federal
assistance from the Department of Energy.

Applicability and Period of Obligation

In the case of any service, financial aid, covered employment, equipment, property, or structure provided. leased,
or improved with Federal assistance extended to the Applicant by the Department of Energy, this assurance
obligates the Applicant for the period during which Federal assistance is extended. In the case of any transfer of
such service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period
during which Federal assistance is extended. [f any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Applicant for the period during which it retains ownership or possession of the property. In all other cases, this
assurance obligates the Applicant for the period during which the Federal assistance is extended to the Applicant
by the Department of Energy.

Employment Practices

Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide employment or where the Applicant's
employment practices affect the delivery of services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance
extended by the Department, the Applicant agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national
origin, sex, age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include, but are not
limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion, demotion, transfer, rates of pay,
training and participation in upward mobility programs; or other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Assurance

The Applicant shall require any individual, organization, or other emtity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or
subleases for the purpose of providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply
' Exhibit |
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DOEF 1600.5 (06-94)
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with laws and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written assurance.
form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure compliance is not relieved by the
collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection aad Access to Records

The Applicant agrees to compile and maintain information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a
result of the Applicant's receipt of Federal assistance from the Department of Energy. Such information shall
include, but is not limited to the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related
data necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color, national origin, sex, age and disability; (3)
data regarding covered employment including use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving
beneficiaries of the program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak or
understand English; (4) the location of existing or proposed facilities connected with the program and related
information adequate for determining whether the location has or will have the effect of unnecessarily denying
access to any person on the basis of prohab:ted discrimination; (5) the present or proposed membership by race,
color, national origin, sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program; and (6) any additional written data determined by the Department of Energy 1o be relevant to the
obligation to assure compliance by recipients with laws cited in the first paragraph of this assurance.

The Applicant agrees to submit requested data to the Department of Energy regarding programs and activities
developed by the Applicant from the use of Federal assistance funds extended by the Department of Energy.
Facilities of the Applicant (including the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books,
accounts, and other sources of information pertinent to the Applicant's compliance with the civil rights laws
shall be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an officer or employee of the
Department of Energy specifically authorized to make such inspections. Instructions in this regard will be
provided by the Director, Office of Civil Rights, U.S. Department of Energy.

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans,
contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or other Federal assistance extended after the
" date hercof, to the Applicants by the Department of Energy, including instaliment payments on account after
such data of application for Federal assistance which are approved before such date. The Applicant recognizes
and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and agreements
made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek judicial enforcement of this
assurance. This assurance is binding on the Applicant, the successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the
person(s) whose signatures appear below and who are authorized 1o sign this assurance on behalf of the
Applicant.

Applicant Certification

The Applicant certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the grant, it will comply with
all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will be furnished to the Applicant upon written
request 10 DOE).

Beth Daniels, Chief Executive Officer Signature M Date IQZ.?O( &/

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
63 Community Way -

Keene, NH 03431

(603)352-7512

Exhibit |
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees
of individua! Federal grants equal to or greater than $25.000 and awarded on or after October !, 2010,
to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or
more. [f the initial award is below $25.000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the
award.

[n accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (.Repor!ing Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Awardtitle descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of performance
9) Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10) Total compensation and names of the 1op five executives if:
a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC,

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.1] and 1:12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

\w &MJ Beth Daniels, Chief Executive Officer

(Contractor Representative Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. . /&/JO/& /
(Contractor Name) ' (Date)

Exhibit )
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
STANDARD EXHIBIT J
FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responscs to the
below listed questions are true and accurate. '

|. The DUNS number for your entity is: 08§/ Q 5’ 3 8 /

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:
3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount;
Name: __- Amount: ______
Name: Amount; I
Name: 7 Amount:
Name; Arﬁounl:

Exhibit J
Page 2 of 2
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Crardner, Secretary of Siate of the Staic of Now Hampshire. do hereby certify that SOUTHWESTERN
COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. is a New Hampshire Nénproﬁl Corporation regisiered 1o transact business in New
Hampshire on May 19, 1965. 1 further cenify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been

received and is in goud standing us lar as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65514
Centiticate Number: 00605339790

N TESTIMONY WIHEREOF,
[ herelo set my hand and cause 10 be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5th day of April A.D. 2021.

Do o
Willizm M. Gardner

Secretury of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)

I, _Kevin Watteirson '
(Name] (Corporation name) _
{Héreinafter tg'e;"“(fgrpdratibn‘f), a._New Hampshire corporation; hereby ceftify that: (i) T.am the duly
(State)
elected and acting Chairpersén of-the:Corporation; (2) | maintain.and have custody and am’familiar with the
minute books of the Corporation; (3) l.am.duly authorized to issue ceftificites with respect to the contéiits: of such:
books; (4).that the Board of Diréctoss of the Corporation have authorized, on 6/18/2021 » such authority

) .. . N (Daig)
10 be.in force and effect:intil December 31, 2022,

(Contract temiination date}

; Chairperson of _Southwestern Comm unity Services, Inc.

The. pefson(s) holding the below listed, position(s) are:authorized to. execiite.and deliver.on behalf of the

Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

‘Beth Dgniels

- CEO _
(Name) (Position)
(Name) " (Posiion)

(S)JThc,’:ne_etin_g“; of the.Board of Dircctor's was heldiin.accordance with New Hampshire

{State of incorporation)

lawand the, by-laws-of the.Carparation; and (6) said authorizationi has not been modified; aniended 6F rescinded

2id continues in full force and éffect.as of the date’hercof.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, i have Fefeurito:set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corpordtion this
21 ddy:of .Déceniber , 2021,

! Chairperson

STATE OF “New Hampshire _
COUNTY OF _Chieghire. .

On this 21 day:of .D_ecem‘ber . |, 2021 , b'e_fo_rc,'mc,“Mérgagci"Freem’gn the
undersigned Oﬁicer,;persgg_g[Iy‘;jap'péaréd;Kévin.Wa'tterson ‘who acknowledged her/himself to be
‘the Chairperson of*_Southwestern Community Services Inc. , & cOrporation and thit

she/he as such _ Chairperson _

_ Chai _ _being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing
‘instruiment for'the purposes ther&in contained.

N WITNESS WHEREOF, T herexto Set iy hand.and official seal.

LT S
-\\\\\\\'\ D' 2
Ny
RS ot

& ...-Q:tl.-..

S\? m”w R\
Ty MISBION

_EXPRES 34
DEC.:4,2022. ;




o MN/DOIYYYY)
ACORD" CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE pion

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. TH!S CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE I1SSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: if the certificato holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{les} must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
i SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of tho policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statoment on
this cartificate doss not confor rights to tho certificats holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER Name. | Ana O'Donnell, CPiW, CIC
Clark Mortenson Insurance ) PHONE _ . (603)352.2121 T, Hop; 1503} 357-8481
PO Box 808 apoREes: dcdonneli@ciark-monenson.com
INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE HAKC §
Keens NH 03431 INSURER A: Philadelphia indemrity insurance Co. 18058
INSURED NSURer B . Maine Employers Mul Ins Co 11148
Southwestam Comm Services Inc INSURERC :
83 Community Way INSURER D :
INSURERE :
Keene . NH 03431 | swsuresme:
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER;  21/22 Master REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NRAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REQUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TRIR SUER] POUCTEFE | POLICYEXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE ?&Di LD POLICY NUMBER (MDY YYY] | (MWDDAYYYY) LIMTS
¢ COMMERTIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1.000,000
" [TAWAGE YO RENTED
| cams.mace g ocCuR PREMISES (Es gocurence) | 8 100.000
H . MED EXP (Ary one parsery | 8 5-000
Al _ PHPK2201638 08:30/2021 | D8/30/2022 | pprsonaL s ADY IURY | 8 1.000.000
GEN' AGGREGATE LIVIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2.000.000
X eover %% [ e . - PRODUCTS - CoMPIOP AGG | 5 2,000,000
OTHER s :
TOUTINED SIRGLE U
| AUTomoeILE LiamaTY ) B roeans s 1,000,000
| ANy AUTO . BOOILY INJURY (Per parson) | 8
| ownNED SCHEDULED '
A [ e scHen 1 pHPKZ251841 08/30/2021 | 08/30/2022 [DODILY INJURY (Per acaioent) | §
HIRED NON-OWNED s
|| anos omy AUTOS ONLY (Per scaigers]
s
| ><| uMBRELLAUAB | XC] occun , EACH OCCURRENCE 3 2.000.000
A EXCESS LG CLANSMADE PHUBT73640 0673072021 | 0813012022 | yoomecare + 2,000,000
peo | X rerenmon s O - s
WORKERS COMPENSATION gﬁ
AND EMPLOYERS' LABILITY vin X shryre [ [ER a—
B e e EEyECUTvE NIA 1102800788 04/01/2021 |-04/01/2022 |EL EACH ACCIDENT s
{Mandstory In NH) E.L DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE {3 ~00.000
H yors, descnba under 500,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS beiow . E.L DISEASE - pouCY umT {3 900,
DESCRIPTION OF GPERATIONS / LOCATIONS | VERICLES |ACORD 101, Additional * may be a1 rrore $ace e required)
3a Staie: NH
All officers inciuded for coverage

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
NH Department of Energy ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

21 South Fruit Street, Ste 10

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord NH 03301
! 2 (el

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights resorved. '
ACORD 26 (2016/03) The ACORD nama and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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MCDonneII

& Roberts.

* PROSIIAL .\W}\no\*

To the. Board of Directors of- : “CERTIFIED RUBI. i tcroumlm

Southwestern Communlty Servrcesw inc.. wol.rm;ogo NOR’ﬂt cou\w

'Keene, New Hampshlre DOVER = CONCORD.
STRATHAM-

/INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT:

t!«'.’eport on the: Fmancral Statements
‘We: haver audited the .accompanying consolidated: ﬁnanclal statements of Southwestern
'Communlty Servlces JInc. (a New Hampshlre nonprof t' corporatton) ‘and- related companles
which compnse the: consolldated statement of financial posrtlon as-of May 31, 2021 and the
related consolrdated statements of actwrtles functlonal expenses -and- cash ﬂows for the year
- then ended and rthe related notes to-the ‘consolidated financial. statements

_‘Management's Responsibility for the: Financial Statements
IManagemant 'is ‘responsible ‘for the preparatlon and' fair preséntation of these consolideted|
i nanclal statements iny accordance wuth accountlng pnncrples generalty accepted in .the Untted

-----

_ .that are free from,matenal mrsstatement whether due to fraud or error

Audrrors Responsfbihnn

Our responslbllrty i$ to express an opmron .an. these consolldated financial statements baseéd.
-onour audit. :We ~conducted .our audlt in.-accordance: with audmng standards’ generally.
‘accepted tn the Unlted *States of Amenca and the standards epplicable to ﬂnancral' audlts

_ ‘-States ‘Tho‘se standards requlre that we' plan and perform the audlts to obtaln reasonable
*assurance about whether the’ fconsolrdated ﬁnanctal statements are “free: from matenal

mlsstatement

AR, audlt ifivolves : perforrmng procédures ‘to- obtain-audit -evidence, about: the amournts, and-
‘disclosures. in: the” consolidated -fi nancral statements The procedures selected depend on {he"
.audltors judgment lncludlngt the ‘assessment of the- nsks of ‘material mlsstatement of. the
consolidated financial “statemeénts, , Whether due 'to fraudor- error: In" making- those - risk
assessments the audltor consrders intémal control relevant ta the. entaty s.preparation and falr-
presentation of.the, consolldated financial stateiments.in ofder to design audit procedures that
rare:appropnate in the circumistances, ‘but not for, the. purpose, of expressmg an oplnlon on,the ’
effectweness of the entity’s, internal- control Accordingly“we express no suich opmlon 1An audit
also- inciudes evaluatlng the approprtateness of accounting policiés: used and ‘the,
=reasonableness of’ slgnifcant accountlng estimiates. made by ,management as well ‘as
evaluatmg the overall présentation of the consoltdated fi nancral statements

We! betleve that the audlt evtdence we have obtained is. sufficlent and appropriate to.provide- a
tbasis for our: audrt apiAion:.



tOQmion .
-In our opinion; the, consolidated fi nanc1al statements réefefred to. aboveprésent falrly. in-all

tmatenal respects thé fi nancual posutton ‘of Southwestern’ Communlty Services, In¢: and related
companles as of May 31,2021, and the changes in their net assets and their- cash;ﬂows for the.
year then ended in. accordance wrth accountlng pnnr.:tples generally accepted |n the Unlted
tStates of Amenca

"Report 6n Summarlzed Comparatlve Information’

We ‘have prewously audited Southwestern Communlty Servnces Ific.. and related compantes
2020 financial ‘statements,. ahd. we expressed ‘an.unmodified audit- -opinion. on those audited
financial statements in our report dated October 5, 2020. In our. -opinion; the: summanzed
comparattve «lnformatlon presented heretn as of and for.the year, ended May 31, 2020, is
conststent in-all matenal respects with the ‘audited finaficial statements from which it has. been
denved

Other Informatron
“Our audit was conducted: for: the purpose of forming an opinion on the consoltdated fmanctal
statements asa whole: The accompanytng schedutes of’ expendltures of federal awards ‘as;
'reqwred ‘by. Title 2 U.S. _Code of Federal Regu!atrons (CFR) Part. 200, Uniform: Admmlstratrve
Requlrements Cost Prmcfples,, and -Audit Requrrements for ‘Federal .Awards, and the
“Schedules of Functtonal Revenues and Expenses :are presented for purposes. of addtttonal
-analysis:and.are not e requ:red ‘part of the consolldated financial statements.’ Such Informatlon
As the responslbllttypf management and was: derived from and. retates dlrectly to the underlylng'
‘ accountmg and’ other récopds -lsed to prepare-the consolidated fi nancial statements‘ The.,
information has been sub}ected to ‘the auditing procedures applled in. the ~audit. of - the
consolldated fi nancaal statements and. certatn addltlonat procedures mcIudmg companng and

Pt ow

_ prepare the consolidated fi nanclal statements or to the consolidated f nanclal statements
ithemselves, tand other: addltlonat procedures in accordance with audttlng *standards generally )
-accepted. in the United* States of -America: In our opinion; the information is fairly-stated, in' aII '
matenal respects tn relation tor the conso[idated fi nancual statements as a whole.

Other Reportmg Required by Govemment Aud!ting_Standards

.ctober 22, 2021 on ‘our consuderatlon of Southwestern Communlty Serwces Inc's Intemal

control over fi nanmal reportmg ‘and on. our ‘tests ‘of its comphance ‘with certam prowstons of

‘laws, aregulatlons contracts; and grant agreements. -and: other matters “The purpose “of that

réport.is- to ‘describe the scope of our testing of ‘internal controf over financial reporting and :
roomptiance and ‘the results of that testing, 'and-not fo provide an opmlon on internal control!
Jover fi nancial reporting, or on compltance That réport is an integral part-of an -audit performed,

.infaccordance with . Government Auditing Standards'in considering: Southwestern Community-
‘Services, Inc $internal: control ovér.financial reportlng and‘compliance,

'October 22,2021,
‘Wolfeboro, New Hampshirg .



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
T . MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

‘Seo Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements .

3

—————

.ASSETS.
2021 12020’
CURRENT ASSETS ke g
. Cash- and ash equivalents o 2 722 941 '$- 1,400,153’
Accounls recervabla nat 1 781 636 r‘I 201,132
‘Prepaid expenses - 62,828 « 57,168
|N9_te_s re_zcelvab!e g 2,357, _2 35‘{
Total urrent sssgte ¢ 2560562 . -2.600810
PROPERTY
-Land- and’ bUIIdIngs . . 28 93? 986 . 19 243 210
Vehicles end equipment. - 568, 380" 541 236
Furilure and fixlures . : ) 934,441 279.753:
Totg] property - 20,437,807 20,058,199
Less accumutated depreciation’ . 14621052 8557516
" Property, riat __15,815.855 11,498,623
IOTHER ASSETS - ..
Investment In relaledt parties ' *138,001- 198,482
Dug, from- rolated par‘ues. '55 138 59,067
‘Cash.ascrow and reserve funds 1,471, J41 609,897
‘Securily, deposils. . 105,780 169,767
Other assets ~ ) 384" 384
Total otfier assats: - 1,771,054 __ 4,137,607,
Tolal assets * _ ' 211564717 °§,15,207:040
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS"
CURRENT LIABILITIES ) ] oo :
Accounls payable $ 240,588 '$ 180, 672
Aocrued expenses . 170,074 87,023
Accmad payroll and payrolltaxes . . -244,003 228,394
.Olher curfent abilities. 148,854, 149,154
Refundable advances . . 729,955 IZQO 431.
‘Curl;ent portion of. Iong term debl . . 142 174, 125, 324
‘Total cuirent fiabilitigs.« 1 675 546° 1,041,004
.NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Long tafm debt, less wm_an! portion shown above i1, 300 411 8,805, 85?
Economic Injury D:saétér Loan 150, 000
Paycheck Protéction Progmm loan. 439 070
Tétal noncurrénit iiablities . 11,450,411 19.344.921
Tolal liablites .- 13,126,057 . 20:385,831
NET ASSETS. - ' L
Without donor restnclxons : 7,815,065 4,768,837
IWIth donar. resldcuans . 215 349. T'144,472°
Total et assels ' 81030414 4911109
efg_taf! IIa:I)III_tIe'&i é'ﬁd,nel assfe_Is". , $ 21,&56,471 $° 115,207,040 -



WITH PRIOR” !EAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATNE INFORMATION

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT:

‘Govemmeant contracls
Program service fees -
‘Rental income
“Devetoper (e income:
. Support’.

Spcnsorshlp :

+ Intarest Incoms
' Forglvennss of debt.
Miscellansous '
In-klncl con!ﬂbuﬂons

Total r'evenues‘ and othar support

NET ASSETS REUEASED,FROM
RESTRICTIONS:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2021

Tatal révenues, other suppoft, and

‘net assets released from festrictions

=EKPENSES
Progiamm setvices
‘Home enefgy programs
<Edutation and nutnlion
‘HomeIess programs
,Houslng services

:Economlc developmenI services-

Other programs ,
Tuta1 pmgram servlces

¢ Supportlng actIthes .
Managemerit and general

Tolal ekperises

CHANGE IN NET, ASSETS BEFORE
LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

L1055 ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS -

CHANGE IN'NET.ASSETS

v

NET Ass_isrs.'*asémiqme OF YEAR'

‘NET-ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM
LIMITED PARTNERSH[PS ‘

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

- Without Doror . - +With Doror » 12021, “2020
'Restrictions  Rasirictions _Total “Total .
$ 14451497 § - $.14451,407  .§ 10,819,721
" 12,708,902 - '2,708902 2:606,816-
1,657,741 : 1.657.741 1,165,032"
.o . _‘__:. i - I 508
465,614 436,024 - - '601,838. 593,610
21,703 . . 23703 26,546
1,402 . 4,402 . 8,224
518,501 : *518,501" 79,338,
239,098¢ ; 233,098 *148,113.
.3&4)4 .- '-553414' - -167,553.
20,129,870 136,024 20265884’ 15416461
B5.147 (85.147) - -
5,559,497 - /5:558,497 *5,153,988
2,629,089 . 2,620,099 2,687,812
5,616,502. . '5516,502. 2,080,655 -
2,913,953 - : *2,913,953. 2,433 660
621,784 . 621,784 737,663
750.430° D . -750,430 775,342 -
+ 17,991,265 E 17.991,265° 13,848,621
1,948,672 1,848, 672 761,642
19,939,637 - . _ 19939937 15810563
255,080 T0.877" "325,957 (1841702}
- - (140)s ,
{60,897} - _{80,897). " (236)
194,183" 70877 265,060, (194,478)
4,768,837 A4a13 91108, 5,106,587
‘ 2,854 245 =, __ 2@s4245. =
$ 7815065 § . 215349 © § +4911,109.

$ 8030414

4

‘Soe Nétes to Consolidsted Financial Stataments



Spece costs
Dirwct chiant aosisience
TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORT _
* IMARAJENENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION
Socation of menagerees a0t anaral wxper
TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Sas Hotas 1o C

PRI Y

d Financis! 8

nd
thdrition

§ 1813514
100508

3.0
83,778
3,400
‘28,110
12.004
20,438
2,20
81
15005
5,055

Economic
Erzorar Bervves darvices Ervetaiiizs Eroaram Qeoeral
401084 5403 M08 F 43I
37,008 43514 20,248 33,04
124,29 283870 53,563 120,793
24,871 51,208 20,70 “im
08 1108 5438 -
1,130 2,100 . n
12,051 T.788 10,471 -
42954 61,431 830 “@rR
117,067 803,034 - 7620
. 320 [25] -
33,483 87,681 15,290 0,090
5083 43,121 - 1800
. _ 0 134 13
1M2 82,29 9,548 1,350
- 101,224 . .
i 8571 - .
0872 [RICE] 1,588 740
128 7 FT .
3,300 30,027 . .
Tiea ‘1,480 LAP] 1,183
. ] . .
20,002 10.872 .29 [REY
11 0513 18,334 .
1,048 41,329 Wt 0.852,
- . 21,112 4
304,003 118,703 16,731 114,
4,128,108 12,671 0508 32
4,818,502 2912953 029,784 180,430
‘897504 216,818 [1 212 81,251
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" CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS.
| FOR THE. YEARS ENDEDMAY 31,2021 AND 2020

2021 120201
Ll CASH FLOWS FROM OPERAT[NG ACT|V|T1E5 ) . .
-Change In net.assets- '$ 265060 5. (194,478)
“Adjustriierits to reconcila ehangsin net ‘Bssels lo ) ‘ T
et cash from operating activities: : o
+Depreciation . 809, 155' 663, 252.

Loss on disposal of property 140
Loss on 1nveslmenl in imited partnershlps 160, 897 - 238
Forgrveness ofdett (318, 501) (79,338)

Decrease (increase) in assets: i T

Accounts recelvable (580;504) 42,337
Prapaid éXpaniss t 31,348, f(s 446)
Interest-racelvable e 45,547
Due frum ‘related ‘partigs: 3,928 -35.
Secirity deposits (2,242) *.(6.77—1}
*{Decrease) increase in liablhlles '
Accounls payable. : .22045 (230 941},
Accrued expensas .36,929 (32 597)‘
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes. - , 15609 ° “(5.508).
Cther currént liabiliies. . ‘ -(300) 10,414
.Refundabla advances’ 439,518 109,443
'lnterest payable . e (49 547)
NET" CASH PR_OVIDE‘;D‘BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES" 682043 gsa;sg.
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES — e
* Purchase pf'grp_be'ﬂ_y- : (432;400)' {138,174)
-'NET CASH USEDIN INVESTING. ACTIVITIES _(4332400) __ (136:74).
CASH FL.OWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVI'I"IES —

. Proceeds from long tefrn dabt; * ' 485,000 36,679

Repayment of long term debl (272,082) (12? 826)' .

Procesds’ fmm Economic trjury Disaster, Loan’ £150.000,

"Proceeds. [rgm Paycheck Protaction Program’ _ - - *439 070
'NET CASH (USED (N) PROVIDED BY. FINANGING ACTIVITIES:. (37,068) . .347,923:
‘NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 713,481 476529
:CASH-AND'RESTRICTED CASH, BEGI&NNG OF YEAR 2,210,050 1.731:521;
.CASH AND REST RICT ED CASH TRANSFERRED .

FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS ) R T £ e
:(_:ASI-! AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR * '$ 3194882  §..3.210,050

‘Sée/Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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vCONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE ~YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021_AND_2020

2021 {2020
SUPRLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF.CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash'péld during the'yeaF foF interast § 175005 5 165028
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES,
Property financed by lorig term.debt kX ?"3:7.,599; ‘&i" -
Transfer of assats from_nawly conso!ldaled LPs . s ]
Prepaid sxpenses ‘% 36,807 §. s
.Land dnd biiidings™ . _ . 3,362,003. .
*Furniture and fitures: 624,491 2
Securily deposits- ] -33,781 __ "y
Totai transfér ‘gf'_:as';é_ets'ffom newly consolidated LPs 8 4077082 §' .
Transfer of liabilitles from riewly consolidatéd LPs: e
Accounts pa'yable ‘% +57,865 %, u
Aocrued expenses . 46,122 . -
Due {o refated partias . Lk .
Long term debt _ ‘ -1.890‘,293 . -
“Tota! transfer of Habilitias from newly consolidated LPs . §' 1,994,285 % -l
‘Tolal partners' capital from newly consolidated LPs. $ 2.?5:?481 $ s
.Pé_rtner‘sicapila_f_fpm'\/lg;usiy recordid a$ invésimant in related parties _ 287 -
“Total trangfer of partners' capital from newly corisdlidated LP§ ' ‘$. 25“54@‘5 3 -

*See Notes ta Consolidated Finarclal Statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED Fl NANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY- 31, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestem Commumty Servuces Inc..is.a New. Hampshlre nonprofit oorporatlon
formed :4s an- umbrella corporation that ‘offers’ an array of. services {0 the. elderly.
dlsabled and low-lncome households in thé Cheshire. and Sullivan countles of
New lHampshlre Various programs provide assistance in thé areas of- educatlon

chlld development -elmployment, energy.- and its conservatlon housing. and
homelessness:. prevent[on Serv:ces are: provuded through’ Southwestern
Communlty Services, Inc.,. and ’its. related corporattons SCS Management;
Corporatlon SCS Housmg, Inc.; SCS Development Corporatlon SCS Houslng
Development Inc., and: various Itmlted partnershlps as descnbed below The
Organlzatron s commltted to providing respectful support services and asmstmg.
individdals and. famiilies.in achlevmg self—sufr iciency-by helping them overcome the-
caises of povarty The primary’ source 'of revenues: is derived from govemmental
contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements mclude the accounts of Southwestemn
Commumty Services, Inc. and the. following entities' (collecttvely the Organlzatlon)
as Southwestern Communlty Setvices, Inc. has both .an economic’ mterest and’
control of the&ntities ‘through a majority voting: interest in" their. govemmg board:.
All slgnlf cant lntercompany items and transactlons have been: ellmlnated from the

basic consolsdated financial statements '

L ‘SCS Management Corporation

s 'SCS Housmg. Inc.

= SCS Development Corporatuon
'SCS Housmg Developmenl Inc, ‘
'Drewsvllle Camage ‘House Associatés, Limited Partnershlp (Drewsville)

. Troy SenionHOUSmg Assoclates; Limited Partnership (Troy Senlor)
Keene East Side Senlor Housmg Assouates Limited' Partnershlp (Keene
-East Slde)

‘. Swanzey Township Houslng Assomates Limlted Partnershlp (Swanzey)

‘= Snow Brogk. Meadow Village. Housmg Associatés,. Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook) '

» Keene nghland Housing Associates, Limited- Partnership:(Keene: nghland)'

»  Warwick-Meadow Housmg Assomates Limited Partnershtp (Warvwck)



NOTE 1

'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS: ENDED MAY 31; 2021 AND 2020

LS |

-0RGAN|ZATION AND SUMMARY' OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES<
- {continued]

'Basis of ‘Accounting

The consolidated finanéial statements of the Organlzation have been prepared.

~_uttllzing the: accrual basis of accounting i, accordance wrth generally -accepted.

accounting principles.

Basis of Presefitation

‘The consolldated financial staterents of the Organization have bgéri prepared: in
‘accordance with” U'S. -générally accepted accountnng prinmples (us 'GAAP),
which requrre the Organtzatton to. report mformatron regardmg its fnancral
‘position. and actlvrtres accordlng to the followrng net asset classtfi cations The

classes. of et assets are’ determined by the presence or absence ‘of donor—
imposed restncttons

Net asséts. without donor restrictions: Net asséts that .ars. niot subject fo

-donor:imposed réstrictions and may be, expended for any purpose in

performmg the prtmary objectrves of the, Orgamzatton These net assets may-'
_ be used at the discretion of the Organization's. Board of Dtrectors

*Net assets with:donor restnct:ons ‘Net assets subject to stlpulatlons imposed -
by donors. and ‘grantors’-- Some™ donor. restnctrons are temporary in nature
those restnctronsrwrll be met: by actions of the Organlzatron orby passage, of
time, ;Othar donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby:the donor has'.
wsttpulated thefunds be maintained in perpetuity

As-of May 31, 2021 and> 2020, the ‘Organization had net -assets’ Withoit donor
restncttons and wtth donor restrictions.

The fi nancral statements include certain prior year summarizedacomparatwe‘
information’in total 'bit not by.het dsset class. Such'information does not include

sufficient detail.to constitute a presentatron in conformity wnth generalty accepted '

accounting, pnnc:ples Accordingly, such mfonhatton should be read in COHJUl’lCtIOﬂ
with the Organrzatron s nancial statements for the year ended May 317 2020 from’

,whtch the: summanzed 1nformat|on was derived.

TRefundable Advances

The Organrzation records grant and contract revenue. as refundabte advances until
itis expended for the purpose 'of the grant or oontract at Whlch time it is recognrzedr
as.revenue.



-NOTE 1

F

. FOR! THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATIQN AND SUMMARY ‘OF. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES'
(continued)

n-Kind Support

The +Organization: records various types of-in-kind - support lncluding professmnal ;
services and’ matena!s Contributed profess:onal semces are recogmzed if the
sennce recelved creates or enhancesdong Iwed assets or requures spec:ahzed sktlt
are’ prowded by individuals possessing those- skllls and would typlcaIIy néed to'be
purchased if not prov:ded by donahon Contnbutlons of tanglbte’ assets"‘are
reoogmzed at falr value when recewed

Estlmates

The presentation of financial statements in ‘conformity wuth generally accépted
accounting principtes requares management to.make estimates. and assumptlons
that. affact the reported . amounts of assets .and -liabilities’ and> dlsclosure of
contingent.assets and’ liabilities at the date of the. financial, statements and: the’
réported amounts of revenués, and expenses during the, reportmg pefiod. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cae_h and Cash’ Equwatents
For: purposes of the statement of cash. flows,.the Organlzatlon conSIders all liquid.
investments. purchased with original maturities ‘of three months or less 10 be cash

unlvalenls

The followmg ‘table. prowdes a reconcmatmn ‘of cash and restncted cash reported.
WIthln the. ‘statements of i nanc1a| position Ihat sum to the total in the statements of.
cash ‘flows. as of May,31

2021 . 2020,
Cash, operations: .$ 1,722,041 § 1,400,153
‘Cash escrow and reserve funds: 1,471,741~ __"809,807

Total cash and restricted cash, §.:3:104,682 MQLQ.QQQ

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are statéd atthe amount managementfexpects to collect from
balances: outstandmg at year ‘end. "Balances 'that dre still outstandlng after
management ‘has: used reasonable .collection ‘efforts are-written’ off through a
charge to the valuatlon allowance. and a credit to accounts receivabte The -
allowance for uncoltectible accounts was’ estimated to be zero- at May 31,°2021

. and+ 2020.. The Orgamzatlon ‘has no policy for charglng mterest 0n".overdue
' accounts

11



NOTE 1

NOTES TO: CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
"FOR THE YEARS E ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
‘(continuedl ) I

Current Vulnerability Due to Cértain Concentrations -

The Organization Is operated it a-heavily regulated. environment. The gperations.

of -the Organizatlon are subject {0 the administrative dlrectlves ‘fules and.

regulations of federal state and Jocal regulatory agencias. Such admlnistrative

directives;, rules and regulations are 'subjéct to chiange by an‘act of Congress or

Leglslature Such changes may.occur with little: notice or inadequate funding' to-

pay. for the related cost, mcludlng the. addrt:onal administrative-burden, to comply

with & change For the years ended May- 31 -2021.and 2020, approxrmately 1%

and. 69%; respectively. of the Orgamzatlons total’ revenue was received- from
government agencies. The, future: nature, of the Organlzation is dependent upon:

" continued support from the government

Concentration of Credrt Rrsk

whrch at times may exceed federally insured I|m|ts The Organrzatlon ‘has not
expenenced any Iosses iri such accounts and believes it |s not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts

Property and Depreciatlon

Purchased property and’ equrpment are stated at cost at the: date of. acqulsltion

or at, fair value-at- the date of receipt in the case of donated property: The-

Orgamzation generatly caprtallzes and deprecrates all-assets’ with'a cost: greater‘
than $5,000 and an expectéd life: greater than one year, Deprecration is:provided"
for-using the straight-lme method In amourits. designed to. amortlze the “cost of,

the'assets.over their estimated useful livés as follows:

Bulldings and improvements 10+ 40 Years
'Vehiéles-and equapment 15 - 10 Years
!Furruture -ahdixtures. 7 Years

The use of- -certain assets is specified under. the terms of grants recelved from. - .
agencles of the federal government, These grants .also place: liens on- cerain
assets and, |mpose restrictions on:thie usé of funds received.from the: disposition,
of the_property.- Deprecratron expense for the years ended May: 31, 2021 and 2020 .
totaled.$909,155 and $663,252, respectively.

Advertising
The Organlzatlon éxpénses advertising costs as incurred.

12



NOTES TO: CONSOLIDATED. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ FOR THE, YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020

'NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(contlnued)

Inconie Taxes

Southwestern Communlly Services, Inc.-and SCS. Management: Corporatlon are'
exempt from Federal: incomeé taxes. under Section . 501(c)(3) of ‘the lnternala
Revenug, Cade and are not private foundations.' As 'such, they are exempt from-
income tax on their exempt function'incame.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS. Development: .Corporation and SCS Housing Development,
Inc are taxed. as-‘corporations.. SCS Housmg 1nc. has federal niet operatlng loss
can'yfonwards available for. the May 31, 2021 and 2020 ‘tax.. returns totalmg'_'

© $1,230,191 and $1, 135 222, respectlvely ‘These loss carryforwards may be offset
agalnst future taxablé incomie: and, if not, used will begin to expire in 2027 SCS
DeveIOpment Corporatlon hias federal net ‘Operating loss carryforwards totalmg $542
and $555 atMay. 31,2021 and 2020, respectwely These loss carryforwards may-be:
offset. against futute taxable income and, if not used, ‘will begin 10 expire“in 2022,
SQS Houslng Development Inc. has federal net: operatlng loss: carryforwards_
totaling.$59, 861 and $35,574 at May 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These. loss
can'yforwards may. be offset agalnst future taxable income and, if not used, will, begm'
to: expire in 2035.

The tax eﬁects of the carryfonNards -as rélated 't6 deferred tax fessets is . as

..»2021 : .'2020.>
Tax benefit from loss carryfowvards $271 025 $246 404
Valuatlon allowance (271 025) (248 404)
‘Déferred tax asset $___ - 8 .-

Drewsvllle Troy. Senior Winchester, : Keene East ‘Side, Swanzey. Snow Brook
Keene H|ghland and ‘Warwick are: taxed as partnershlps Federal income taxes are
rot payable by, or prowded for these' entltles ‘Earnings: and losses are ‘included- in'.
the partners’ federal . income tax retums: ‘based of .théir- share of partnershrp;
eamings. Partnershlps are: requnred to file income tax-returns. with the, State of New
Hampshire,and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accountlng Standard ‘Codification No 740; “Accountlng ‘for.’ Incorfie :Taxes
estabhshed the minimuarn thréshold for re¢ognizing, and .a.system for: measunng.
the benef‘ ts: of tax. refum positions in financial statements Management has
analyzed the ‘Organlzatlon s tax ‘position 'taken-on ‘its mcome tax retims for all
open. years ‘and has’ concluded that no- -additional provision for: mcome taxes Is.
necessary in the Orgamzatlon s ﬁnanmal staternents.

1%



NOTE 1,

NOTES TO° CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020 °

ORGANIZATION: AND SUMMARY -OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIClES
Icontmued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments .
FASB ASC Topic-No, 820-10, Financial Insttuments, prowdes a definit:on of’ fair.
value which focuses on an :exit price .rather than .an -éntry price, estabilshes a
framework in generaliy accepted accounting pnnmples for® measunng fair valug.
which emphas:zes that faif value is a markét-baséd measurément; not. an entity-
specnfic measurement .and requires expanded disclosures about fair Yvalue,
measurements\ n accordance with ASC: 820-10, the Organlzatlon may use
valuatton techniqles, consrstent with market income and cost approaches to
measure: fair value. As'a basis for consrdenng ‘market participant assumptlons in
fair vaiue measurements, Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value. hierarchy, which
pniontizes thé inputs used i’ measuring faif values. The hierarchy;gives the
highest priority to Level i measuréments .and :the lowest pnorlty to. Level 3.
measurements. The three lévels. of the fair value hierarchy. under ASC TOpIC
820-10 are described ‘as:follows:

.Level 1= Inputs to the valuation. methodology are quoted prices, available T -
active markets for rdentical investments as of the repomng date ‘

Level'2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology | are other thaniquoted ‘market-
.'pnces in actlve markets, which .are etther ‘directly or indirectly observablé ‘as, -
of the reporting -daté, ‘and fair value can be determined ‘through: the use ofﬁ
'models or other valuation methodoiogies

Level 3- lnputs to the valuation methodoiogy are unobservable inputs in
.situations whiere thére is;little-of no market activity for the asset or. liability and.
the reporting entity. makes estimates.and. assumptions rélated to the. pncing of:
the assét.or: Iiability including assumptions regardlng nsk:

The. carrying ;amount of cash accounts recelivables, prepaid: expenses eccounts_-'
payable ‘accrued. expenses, and reflndable’ advances approx:mates fair -value.
because of the short fmaturity of those instfruments.

Revenue Récognition

Amounts recelved from conditional grants and contracts receivéd for specific
purposes.are generally recognized ds income to the extent that reiated expenses
and. ‘conditions are incurred or met. Conditional grants received, prior to the.
conditions being met’are reported as refundable advances. Contributions: of cash
and other assets-are reported as with donor restrictions if they -are. received with’
donor’tmposed stlpuiations that limit the-use of the donatéd assets. However, if-a
restriction’is. fulfilled in the same ‘period in which the contnbution is received,. the
Organlzatlon reports the support as»without donor restrictions: ~

14



\NOTE™

: NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YE YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2021 AND 2020

.ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(conhnuedl

-Revenue Recogn'ition (coﬁtinuedj

Proqram Service: Revenue
Program service revenue s. necogmzed as revenue ‘when 'the sérvices .are
perforrned

'Rental'Revenue

‘The Qrganization, denves revenues. from the rental of apartrent Units. Revenues
‘are recognized as income, monthly,ywhen rents become due and control of the
. apartrnent units’ is transferred to the lessees. The individual Ieases are for atem
-of one year and ‘are, cancelable by thé tenarits. Coritrolof the: leased. unlts is
transferred to the Iessee 'in .an .amount that reflects’ the, ‘consideration ‘the,
Partnershtp expects to be entilléd to in exchange for the leased Units. ‘The:cost
‘incuired {o obtain & lease will be expensed ‘as incurred.

Perforrhance Obligations and Contracl Assets: and'Liabllities

The: perfOrmance obligations related to the lease contracts and.program services’
‘afe satisfied at a:point in-time.. Revenue from performance obligations: satnsr ed
-at a-point -in tlme consrst .of morithly réntal paymenis- and fees’ for- program
"services There are no contract assets or: Ilabrlrtles for: the years ended IMay 31

2021 and 2020

New Accountrnq Pronouncement

Ih: May 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-09 (Topic.-606) — Reventie, from Contracts:
with Customers The ASU and all subsequently issued clarifying ‘ASUs replacedv
most exnstlng revenue recognltlon gmdance in U'S. GAAP. The ASU also’ requires

'expanded disclosures relatlng ta'the nature, amount, timing, and’ uncertamty of.

revenue from cash flows arising from contracts wlth customers. Theé Organizataon

adopted the .new 'standard .efiective June 1, 2020, the first :day of the.,
Orgamzatton $ fiscal’ yéar using the modrf ed retrospective approach. The adoptton

did not. result in a change to-the accountmg for any of the appllcabte revenue.
streams;” as such, no cumulative effect. adjustment was recorded. Seé revenue
recognltron policy above

Eunctional Allocation of Expénses

The costs; of prowdlng the various programs and other acttvrtles ‘have been
summanzed ‘on‘a fuhctional basis. Natural i expenses are defined, by their nature
such as. salanes rent, supphes etc. "~ Functional expenses are classified by the
type of actiwty for . whlch expenses dre incurred, 'such as. managernent ‘and:
generat .and dlrect program costs Expenses are allocated by function, using a
reasonable and consrstent approach that is pnmarily based on: functlon and use,

15



NOTE.1

- NOTE.2

NOTE 3.

‘NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED-FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
"FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY.OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued).

Functional Allocation of | LE__penses {continued)
The -costs: of ;providing -certain program. and ‘supporting services, have been
d|rectly charged

The: Organizatron subm:ts an mdrrect tost rate proposal for the paid” leave fnnge.

benef ts.and othér indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
SErvices:.. The indirect. cost rate is 12% effectlve from June 1, 2019 through May
31,2022;

BANK LINE OF CREDIT '

The Organlzation has a $250 000 revolwng line of credit agreement wilh a. bank
Interest is due monthly and is stated at- the wall, Street Journal Prime Rate or at a
floor ratercf 4%. The line is: :secured: -by:all the Orgdnization's assets: As of May'
31,2021 and 2020, the mterest rate was 4%: There. was no outstandlng balance
at May 31,2021 and 2020.

LONG TERMDEBT ) N -
Thé long term debt at May 31,:2021 and 2020 consisted of the following:

2021 2020 -
1% mortgage payable to- New Hampshrre Housing_
in: monthly installments for pnncrpal and mterest of
$891 through August- .2032." The note. is secured by.
feal estaté of the Qrganization (NHHFA 96" Main B
Street).; $: 127.000° % 136,370

Non-interest. bearlng ‘mortgage payable .',t_o
Communrty Development Finance ‘Authority,. in
quarterly principal 'payments based ‘on:ah operating
income- formula - apphed to affordable: housing
portton= of ‘the “specified real ‘estate. The.note is
secured By real-estate of the. Organlzatron (CDFA - o
96 Maln Street); 27,589 129,589

| 525% note .payable to a bank in monthly

mstallments “for pnncupal and. interest of $988.

through March 2021: The note was pald in full

dunng the year ended May 31, 2021 The néte was

secured by. real estate of the 'Organization »
(Peoples United Bank, Ashuelot) - 19,652
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NOTE:3

1NOTES IO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS.ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020

LONG TERM DEBT (continued)

Non interest . ‘bearing mortgage payable: to ‘New
Hampshire Housung Payment is deferred for .30
years, through September 2031: or until project s
sold or-refinanced. The 'note is securéd by -real
estate of the ‘Organization {NHHFA, 17 Pearl).

Non-interest. beanng mortgage payable to New
Hampsh:re Housing. ‘Payment 'is deferred for 30
years, through July. 2032, unless theré is surplus
cash from whichto.make a payment or until pmject
is sald or refi nanced: The note-is secured- by real
estate of the Organizahon (NHHFA 41-43 Central).

4:25% mortgage payable to a bank in mofthly
mstallments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with. a bal!oon payment
that ‘was. due January 2017 The riote: ‘was
amended during the- ‘year “ended May 31, 2019, :and
is. now due Datember.2026. Under the amiéndmenit,

interest rate-is-4.94% and monthly mstallments fori

prmcupal and" mterest are * $1,957 The ote is
secured « by, real ‘edtate of the Organlzatlon
(PeOple S, Unlted Bank M|testones)

4.375% noté:payable to, Ruiral Housing- Sefvice in
monthly- installments for principal and mterest of
$11,050 through May 2049 The: note is secured by
real “estale of the Organizahon (TD Bank; Keene
Office). .

Non-interest. bear{ng _hote payable to. Cheshlre
County in New Hampshlre Payment is not
necessary unless Organlzat[on defaults on contract*
The  note. is. sécured by :real estaté of the
Organlzatlon (CDBG, Keene Office).

7

2021

376,066

112,702

2,134,970

460,000

244505,

376,363

130,230

;‘,2';"1.75,?.';4'9'.

460,000
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NOTE'3

NOTES T0 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31,2021 AND 2020

?I;ONG"'IEIil\?l'.?ﬁEBT"(‘c‘:‘ontinug@)

*Note payable to. 3, bank in-monthly mstallments for:
pnnctpal and rnterest of $2,463 mcludlng interest.;
through May 2039 'Interest is ‘ddjusied’ évery. five’
years based, on remarmng pnnorpat balancé "and.

"Class:c Advantage Rate" prowded by Federat
Home Logn ‘Bank- of - Boston which resulted: in an
interest rate. of 4.67%: at May 31, 2021 -and 2020:

The note” 'is. secured by. real ‘estate of the.

Organizatlon {TD" Bank Keene -Offi ceICommunlty'
Way)

519% note: payable to a ‘bank in monthly
instaliments. “for. pnncrpal and ‘interest’ of $889
through May 2021; The riote was paid in full dufing

the year ended May 31, 2021. The note was

secured by - real estate of the. Organizatlon (TD
Bank, 45 Central Street):

Non-interest bearlng note payable to. the ‘Unitéd

_States Department; “of .Housing and’ Urban

Development No. payment is due and. beglnnlng in

January 2015 10%of the'noteis. forgrven each year.
provrdrng ‘the. properly is wsed’ for - Iow income-

housrng through January 2025, The note. s
sécured by, real -estaté of the Organization, r(HUD
Ashuelot)

Nori: mterest* bearing note payabte to -the United‘
States. Department of. Houslng "and Urban
Develgpment. No payment i$ due arid beglnnrng in

January 2015 10% of the ‘note'is. forgrven gach’ year* .
'provrdrng the “propenty is used for low ihcome

housing through' January 2025. The note ig-secured

by real ‘estate -of .the Organrzatron (HUD 142
Charlestown Road)

wi —8

2021

————

376,617

3

75,000

45,000

389,578

88,433 «

100,000

160,000



‘NOTE, 3

rl\_IOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020 2020 :

LONG TERM'DEBT (continued)

Non: lnterest beanng note payable to. ‘New.

Hampsh:re Housing. in annual payments in the
amount of 50% of anriuial.surplus cash through July
2042 gt which tifme the: remaining balance is due..
The hote s secured by real estate of the
Organizatron (NHHFA; Second Chance),

Non-interest. bearing-noté payable to .a county in
New: Hampshire No paymeént is due and 5% of.the
balance is forgrven ‘each- year, through 2032 when
the remainrng balance becomes due The note is
secured by real'estate of the Organization’ (CDBG

.Second Chance)

Non-rnterest beanng note payable to .a. county in
New. Hampshrre relatrng to an agreement between
the Crty of Keene and -SCS for the purpose of
renovetrng ‘Kegne shetters In total, SCS will receive

$472 000 from CDBG. SCS. WI[| receive the, funds.

""""

as progress is made, The 'noté is :secured by real

estate of the Organrzatlon and will be fully forgrven'

prowdrng the facrlrty serves low- and moderate-
income: individuals for 20 years (CDBG Keene
Shelter)

5.54% note payable toe a finande company, in .
monthty trnstallments for prtncrpal and Interest of

$543. through- August 2022.°The note is' secured by
a vehrcle (Ally, Econolrne Van)

6:54% noté ,payable to .a finance company In
monthly rnstallments for pnncrpai and Intefest of

.....

in: full .during; the year ended May 31 2021. The
note was.securéd by:a vehlcle (Ally, GMC: Acadra)

2.99%, note payable to a bank in monthly

: rnstallments for pnncrpal and interest’ of $820

through May 2031., The note i§ secured by real
estate -of’ the Organrzatron (Savmgs Bank . of
Walpole 45 Central Street).

19

‘2021

704180

311,808

326:809

7:815.

84,395

"IN
Qn
N

e

7943'189.'

328,219

9,500

12,637

15,903



"NOTE3

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

LONG’ TERMF"ﬁEBT::(éontinued).

Non- rnterestrbeanng ‘note ‘payable to: a county in
New Hampshlre reIatrng 1o an agreement betwéen

the rCtty of Kéene,.and 'SCS' for -the_ purposs. of -

renovatlng Keerie shelters. In total, SCS will receive
$472 OOOafrom 'CDBG:+SCS will receive. the funds-
as progress is made The note. is secured by real
estate of. the, Organrzatlon and will be fully forgiven
prowdlng the facrtlty serves low- ‘and moderate-
income: lndfvrduals .forr20 years: (CDBG, Elm Street
Shelter)

Non-interest- beanng ‘note- payable: to the Cify of
Keene New Hampsh[re The note expires in Junie

2022 “and payment is 'not necessary unless the. -

Organlzatlon -defaults. on’ .contract, .The noté s
secured by: real estate of the Organlzatron (City; of
Keene 139 Roxbury Street)

Non-irtérést, bearing. note payable. to-the City of

Keene, New Hampshire with an original balarice of
'$240, 000 rediced to '$204, 000 Wwhén. the

Organrzatron acqurred the note from Keere
Housing in July 2020; -No payment is- due and 5%.
of the. balance is forgtven each year: through June,
2037 The note, is secured by real estate-of the
Orgamzation (City:of Keene. 139 Roxbiiry Street)

Troy Senior-= Non- Interest bearing note ;payable to
a.courity in New: Hampshrre Payments are déferred
untri the noté niatures in, Junie 2029: The. rigte is
secured by real estate of the Organlzatuon (CDBG).

Troy Senior:: Non-interest’bearing. note \payabie to
New,. Hampshrre Housrng Finance Autharity to:fund,

energy. - efficient. rmprovements through. ‘the.
Authorrtys Greener ‘Homes. Program. -Pdyment is

deferred for® 30 years, through August, 2042 The

‘nole is secured by real’ estate of the 'Organrzatton'-- '

(NHHFA)

1 39';1',60.

77:400

204000

640,000

140,210

640,000

140,210
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_NOTES TO CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020

LONGlgRM ﬁEB_'if ('cir)nt_tnued)‘

Keéne East Srde - Non-interest ’ biearing note.
payable toa county in New Hampsh:re Payments:
are' deferred until the note matures” in ‘December
2028. The note |s secured by “real estate:- of the
O.rgamzatlon (CDB_G). '

Keene East Sidé - Non-interest bearlng note.
payable for  .New Hampshlre Commumty
Development Finance Authority - (CDFA) to' fund
energy upgracles -and’ capltal lmprovements

Begmnlng in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven.each’

year rbasedt ‘on the rollmg balance: The: mortgage
may be . released after ten years in January '2026.

The . note s secured by -real . estate of the
Orgamzatlon (CDFA)

Kéene East Side -~ .Non- -interest  bearing note
payable to Néw Hampshlret Mousing to. fund energy
effi cient |mprovements through the Authority's -
Greener Homes. Program. Payment is deferred. for
30 'years, thneugh August 2042. The note .is
secured, - by real -estate of the Organrzatron
(NHHFA)

Swanzey: - Nori “recourse, 4.90% simple mterest
mortgage: note: ‘payable to- the. New Hampshlre
Housrng (HOME) ‘due September 2033, pnnmpal
and |nterest payable at thé sole dtscretlon of the
lender from .the excess cash of the borrower
determineéd by formula -sgcured by the
Partnershlps land and ‘buildings; subject to low
income housmg use restrictions for the -30' year
term of the mortgage

Swanzey -Non-recourse mortgage note payable to

New. Hampshlre Housnng (AHF) due’ September

2043, ‘payablé in monthly installments of $1, 698

lncludmg, lnterest at 2.35% secured by ‘the

Partnershlps Iand and buuldmgs subject to low

income . housmg ‘use’ restnctlons for*'the’ 40."year -
term of the’ mortgage

54

2021

900,000

139,860

228.934

287,710

'353;561,‘

,'20'2'6_;

162,§80

928,034

289,996

365474



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR: THE'YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND. 2020

“NOTE'3 .LONG‘vTE‘RM-'[iE_BI;(éontinued)'

N
=8
N
Q

2021

——

Snow - Brook: Non:recourse,, mortgage 'note
payable to’ New Hampshlre Housmg, due July
2057; -payable: in ‘monthly” installments - of . $2,002
lncludlng interest. :at 4.35% secured by the
Partnersh|ps land and bualdlngs subject 1o - low:
income housmg use: restnctlons for -the ‘30 - year ) , i
term.of the-mortgage. , 436,974 441,872

Show BrooK = Non-feécourse, zero interest mortgage

note payable tto New' Hampshsre Hausing. (AHF)

due June 2034, pfincipal. and. interest payable at

the. sole -discretion of the lender- from the excess

cash' of the ‘borrower -détermined by formula,

secured: by the Partnership’s land and. buildings;.

subject to low Income housing use: restrictions’ for ' -
the 30.year’ term of the mortgage: 237173 237,473

Winchester = Non recourse- mortgage note payable'
to New Hampshlre Housmg (AHF), due May 2032,.
payable in monthly Installments of $370, mcludlng«
mterest at 2. 00% secured by the Partnershlp s land.

fote (NHHER). 43450 46,078

Winchester - Non-récourse, 2ero, intérest. bearlng
mortgage note payabie to New Hampshnrea Housmg
(FAF) due’ May 2032, payable atthe, solédiscretion
of the lender from'the excess cash.of the' borrower:
deterimined by formula, secdred By the:
Partnershlps ‘land’ and, bun!dlngs subject to low’
income housing use restrictions.for- the 30-year . .
term of the mortgage: note (NHHFA). 79,609 85,028

Winchester = Non-recourse, zero interest beanng,
- diréct subsrdy* ‘AHP loan  sécured. by, the.
Partnersmps land and buildings, subject to ow-
incorne housung restnct:ons under the terms of- the:
AHP agreement In the event of a default under-the
aforementloned agreement the loan is due upon
demand with. mterest accrued at & rate of11.67%
for:the: penod the funds: were .outstanding- (Federal . __
Home Loan Bank) 150,000 150,000%
‘22



NOTES‘TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31; 2021 AND 2020 '

‘NOTE'3,  LONGTERM o’EeTT'it:'ontihued)

2020,

)
o
-t

Keene Htghland -. Nonsrecourse- mortgage note.

payabie to- New Hempsmre ‘Housing (AHF) due

August 2035, payable i monthly: mstallments of

$3,122, mcludlng interest. at 2.90%, secured by the

Partnership's- land--arid: buildings, subject 1o low.

income. houelng Juse. restrictions'-for the 30 year o :
term.of the. mortgage note (NHHFA) -+ 434,765 -

Keene nghland o-t 30 year zeronnterest non-

City -of Keene New Hampshlre due June 2035

payiment.of’ pnncnpal is deferred until'the duedate, o

sécired by-land and buuldlngs (City of Keeng). .915,000. -~

Wanmck 2 .30. year, zero. interést, non-recourse

deferred lmortgage note’ payable to. the’ Town of

Winchester, ‘New. Hampshire dué: August., 2036,

payment of prinmpal is" deferred until the due-date,

secured “by land ‘and buildiigs. (Town of ] .
Winchestér). o 500,000 3

‘Total Iong—term debt before unamortized: deferred' o o
fi nancmg costs : 11;460,204 ‘~9.059-!'_462 '

Unamortized déférred finanting costs __ {17619} __(18281)

e ) _.,11'.,4423;585; 9031 181
Lesscurrént portion dle; within-one year _ 142474 126,324 324

The. éche,dtjlé;bf"mat_i;l[ities of long term-debt at May:31, 2021 .is_'és- fd[!éwsgi

. Yeai-Ending
:May 31 : Amount
' 2022 § 142,174
2023 - 142,488
2024 ' 146,073
2025 1541 449
2026 ' 157 3101 ‘
Thereafter 10,720,710 :
Total ' $11 ,469,39&



NOTES TO CONSOL!DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS. ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020

'NOTE4  OPERATING:LEASES.

The Organtzatlon leases facrlrtles equrpment -and vehicles under.non- cancelable
lease agreements- at. ~various f:nancral instltutrons Lease periods range from-
month, to month, to 2025 Monthly lease payments range from. $900 to $3,625.,

Leasé expense. for the years endéd : May 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled $148, 143‘
and $140,758, respectlvely

Future minimum: payments as -of May. 31, 2021 on-the .aboveé ieases are as

follows:
Year Endmg
May 31 . .-Amount
132022 4 69,243
2023 1,050
2024 TQQT-
2_(_)25 _ . .. 120

NOTE:5 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES'
S At May. 31,2021 -and. 2020, the Organization, accrued a Irabllity for fiiture annual-
. leave.time’ that rts employees hadsearned and véstéd |n thé amount of $1 44 916
and $141, 970 respectlvety

‘ ‘N_‘O:_I‘E.G' ~ CONTINGENCIES

' Southwestern: Community Services, Inc. is.thé 100% owner of SCS.Hausing, Inc..
and SCS Housmg Devetopment Inc.. SCS Housrng. Inc. and’ SCS Houslng
Development e are the .general partners of -eight limited- partnershlps formed
to develop low-rncome housmg pro;ects through the use of Low lncome Housmg

.....

SCS Housmg Development “Ine: have. guaranteed repayment .of Irab:lrtres of
various - partnershlps totalmg .approximately- $11,927, 000 and:. $13 988 000 at
Mayr31 2021:and 2020, respectlvely

'Partnershlp real estate with a cost basis of approximately $27,348,000 -and
;$35 896,000 at May 31, 2021 and /2020, respectwely. provrdes collateral - on’
these loans ‘

24



NOTES.

-NOTE 7

NOTE S

’NOTES TO.CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 2020

CONTINGENCIES (tontinued)

Thé Organization-receives funds under: vanous state grants and from Federal
sources: Under the terms of these agreements -the Organrzatlon is reqmred to:
use the funds wrthin a'certain: penod and for-purposes specified, by the govermng
Iaws ‘and’ regulatrons If costs 'were, found net to have beeri inclrred im
compliance with the laws and feglilations, thé: Organlzatron mlght be reqmred to-
repay-the- funds.- ) -

No provrsaons have been made for this contrngency because SpeClﬁC amournts; |f
any, have not been deterrnlned or assessed by’ government aud|ts as of May 31;
2021.and 2020: '

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS '
Dunngtthe years erided May 31, 2021 and. 2020 SCS Housrng. Inc managed
nine .and, éleven limitéd ;partnerships, .respectwely Management fees charged by
sScs Housmg, Inc: totaled $228,239 and $295, 814, for the years erided May 31,
2021 and 2020 respectlvely Addltaonally, SCS Housmg. Inc, has. advanced the
lrmlted partnershrps funds for cash flow: purposes gver several. years

The Organlzatron has also advanced funds-to a related. entrty for: Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorsh|p purposes ’

The total amounts due and expected 10 be’collected from the Irmlted'ipartnershlps
and related entltres totaled $55 138 and $59 067 ‘at May 31, 2021, and* 2020
respectlvely

EQUITY INVESTMENF
Southwestern. Communlty Seivices, In¢: and related companles use the: equrty'
method to account for their fi nancral mterests in the followmg companles

Crtysude Housing Associates, L.P- 5 (9,509) $ (9,505)
Marlbarough: Homies, LP (43). - (27)
Payson Village Séhior, Housmg Associates, LP {12,524) £12,518),
Railfoad Square Seniof Housing Associates, LP -{2,247) (2,071)
Warwick- Meadows Housrng Assocrates LP- Y (28)l
Woodcrest Drive’ ‘Housing Associates, LP 180,727 - 1222 842"
Westmill Senior: Housrng, LP -49. 64
Keeng- Highiand Housnng Assaqtiates, LP _ o F - (269)
Alstead: Senjor Housing Associates; LP __(18.452) _-(18:441)

;;i-l : ':I3§,Q Oj'_ § 18 Q.‘Qé._l‘{
rzs\ .



NOTE®:

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
:FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

EQUITY INVESTMENT (contmued)

SCS' Housing Dagvelopment, Inc. is a 001% ,partner of* C:tyside Housmg
Assotiates, LP, Marlborough Homes; LP, Payson Village ‘Senlor Housing.
Associates; LP, Warwick Meadaws: Housmg ‘Associates, LP; ‘Woodcrest Drivé:
Housrng Associates; L P, .and Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP, 2:0:10%.
partner of Railroad Square Senlor Housing Assdciates, LP, and a1% partner of
Westmlll Semor Hdusing, ILLP dunng the years ended May 31, 2021 "and 2020

SCS Housmg, lnc i$ a O 01% partner of Wmchester Semor Housing Assocrates

years ended May 31 2021 and '2020. -
The remaining 99.99%- ownershlp interest In. Keene nghland Housmg
Associates, LP and Wanfvlc:k Meadow, Housmg Associates, LP were acqunred by
Southwestern Communlty Servrces inc. - -during the year endmg May 31 2021
(see Note 13) and- therefore the Iimuted partnerships are_Included " in. the-
consolidated financial statements for-the year ended May. 31 2021A

Summanzed* financial Informatlon for” entitiés accourited for under- the eqmty
methiod, as. of May 31, 2021 and 2020, ¢onsists of the followmg

Totai assets § 53169  §_56632
‘Total liabilities 16,200, 16:530
‘CapitaMembers equity __37,969°  __-40.102

§. .s"g‘;lg' 9. § '56.6 '3-_2_7
Income $ 3267 $. 3408
‘Expenses 4719 .4 707
Nefloss §. (1452  §(1.200)



NOTE 0,

- NOTE 11

NOTEZ

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND 202 2020

‘RETIREMENT'PLAN . '

Thé QOrganization, malntains a tax sheltered annmty plan.under the. provisnons of.
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code.. All employees.who have had- at
least 30 days of. service to the Qrganization are ellglble to contribute to the plan;
The Organlzatlon beglns matching contributions after the employee has. reached
one. year of service. Employer contributions are ‘at the Organlzatlon § d|screl|on
.and. totaled $296,322-and $278,200 for the years endéd May 31, 2021 and 2020
respectwely .

RESTRICTIONS ON NET.ASSETS ’
Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes

2021 2020
NNECAG — Arinual;Conference Fund $ 6646 '§ 4814
GAPS/Waim Fund. 101,736, 91,725
Transport 90,000 -40,000
HS Parents Assocsatlon 6967 7 933

Total: riet assets with darior restrictions $._215349 .L_gﬁﬁﬂz

BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS
The, board deslgnates a, portlon of ‘the unrestncted net assets for" WM Marcello
GAPS-fufids. There was $12,790 and $14,888 desugnated by the board at. May

.31;'2021 and 2020, respectively

FORGIVENESS OF DEBT.

Puring” the years ended May. 31, 2021 and. 2020, the Organlzatlon reallzed
forglveness ‘of debt mcome in connection With. notes. payable to: Communlty
Development Biock +Grani, HUD and. Commumty Development Finance
Authonty Forgweness of debt income totaled $79,431 and $79, 338 for the,
years ‘ended May 31, 2021 and 2020 respectlvely

The Organlzation recognlzed forgiveness .of debt, of $439, 070 elated to- the_
Paycheck Protection’ Program - dunng the ‘year, ended May ‘31, 2021.. See:
add|tional detail at Note 15.

27



NOTE 13.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
" FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS )

During«the year ended: -May 31,.2021, ‘Southwestein. Commumty Serwces Tric..
acqurred a partnershlp interest in two low-income housing' limited partnershlps
Keene Highland .and Warwick: The- amount paid for the partnership interest.in

-Keene Highland .and Warwick was '$1 each Land at the time of acqwsutlom

Southwestem Communlty Serwces Jnt. became the: general partner

‘The' followmg isa summary of the assets -and Habllities of the: partnershlps at: the '

date of acqwsmon '

Keene _
‘Highland Warwick
Daté 6f Transfer’ 07/01/2020  01/01/2021
Cash, $.156,907 $ 68,063
Security deposits - 21,321 12,460
‘Cash\ reserves 391,456 164,727
Property, net 2,769,245 1,237,249,
Other dssets. 25,946 -10, 861 ‘
Total assets, 3,364,875 _1,483.358
Notes payable 1,372,220 518,078
Other liabjlities’ __. 85,048 18,939
Total latilities 1,457,268 _ 537,017
Partners' capital 1,907,607 946,341
Partners™ capltal prewously recorged ,
2s an investment in-related parties 269 28
Partners”capital transférred $1.907.876. § 946,369



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
'FOR THE-YEARS ENDED MAY'31; 2021 AND 2020

- NOTE14. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY"
’ The’ following represents. Southwestem Commumty Serwc_:es Inc. .and related
companies’fi nanmal assets as of May' 31 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Flnanmal assets at yearend: o e
‘Cash and cash equivalents $. 1722941 § 1400153
Accounts. receivable. 1,781,636, - 1,201,132
Due'from related party 55,138 58,067~
Notes reoelvab!e .2,357 2,357°
“Cash escrow and reserve funds 4TI M. 809 89?
‘Total financial a_ssets; ‘ ' 5033813 B -f3,4'_ié.6(_)’6-
Les$ amotints not avariable to be used
wuthm one year
Pue from related party . (55,138), (59,087
Notes receivable (2,357) (2.357)
Resérve:funds. (1.471.741) . __--(800,897)
Télal amourits not available within one year __(1,520236)  ._ {B71321)

Fmancual assets avallable.to meet general

expendltures over-the fiext twelve months $ 3504577 ¢ L&w ;

The Organlzallon has a goal to maintain unrestncted cash on hand 'to- meet 30.
days of ‘normal operating - expendltures Wthh .are, .On average approxlmately
$1,559, 000 and’: $1;215, 000 at May ‘31 2021 and 72020, respectwely The:
Orgamzat!on has a $250 000 ling of credit availabte to meet cash flowmeeds

- NOTE 15 PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM
- ‘In*ApnI 2020, the. Organhization recelved Ioan ‘proceeds ! 'm the amiount of - $439 070°

. funder the. Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) The. PPP, is .established as parl of
the ‘Coronavirus :Aid, Rellef .and Economlc ‘Security Act (CARES Act) tf: the
10rgan|zat|on did not meet the loan cntena the unforgiven portlon of tHe PPP Ioan is:
payable over five, years at an interest rate of 1%, with a. deferral of payments for the-
first'ten. months "The Organizatlon has. used the proceeds: for purpases consistent
with'the PPP.gnd thé PPP loan has been’ forgiven in full, Therefore, forgiveness of -
the loan totahng $439 070 has been récognized on the Consolndated Statement of *
Actlvities for the year ended May 31, 2021..

_.?. é



NOTE-16

NOTEAT:

NOTE 18’

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FO_R JHE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2021 AND 2020

ECONOMIC INJURY DISASTER LOAN

‘During -June:. 2020 the’ Organlzatton received an *Economuc Injury ‘Disaster- Loan,-
(EIDL) from - the, Small Busiriess 'Administration, wath proceeds in the .amount of.
$150 000.°Thé EIDL is payable over 30 yéars ‘at. an ‘interest raté.of 2.75%. with a
Ideferral of, payments*for one-year from' the date: of the hote, Installments, Includlng

- priricipal and ‘interest, of .$641 mionthly. begm in June '2021.. Thé balance of

pnncipal and interest will bé payable in May 2050 The loan is. secured by.the:
‘Smiall Busmess Admlnlstratlon

.....

Year Endmg

May 31 _ .Amount
20227 $ 3201
2023 T 3,585
. 2024 - 3,685
| 2025 3,788
2026 : 3,893
Thereafter 1 31 848

h§:.~j§gggg

RECLASSIFICATION
Certaln ‘amounts ;and dccounts from the 'pnor yeal’s financial statements’ were
reclassn’ ed. to enhance comparabihty wrth the curient yeai‘s ﬂnanc;lal statements

OTHER EVENTS

The impact of the ‘novel coronavirus. (COVID 19) and measurés to ‘prevent. nts‘
spread are. affectmg the Organization's operations. The sugnlﬁcance of the: Jimpact of
these. disruptlons includmg tha extent of: their adverse impact on the’ Organization’ S
fi nanmal ‘operationdl results, -wil be dictated by the: length-of time: that ‘such
dnsruptlons continue and in 'turn will depend on the currently unknowable- duratlon-
‘of the- COVID~19 pandemlc and the impact of. gevemmenta! regulatlons that. m:ght
be. |mposed in.response to the pandemic “The' Organnzahon s busmess could also
be |mpacted should the: dlsruptions from COVID-19 lead to. changes in consumer‘
behav:or COVID-19 also makes it fmore, challengmg for management to estlmate
future performance of the:businesses, partlcularly over.the'near.to med:um term



'‘NOTE 19,

'NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS: ENDED MAY 31 2021 AND ¢ 2020

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS -
’Subsequent evénts-aré events or. transactlons that occur aﬂer the statement ofu
fi nancnal posmon ‘date, bt before-fi nancial Statements are-available to be. issled:
'Recognized subsequent‘ events .are events or transact!ons that-provide addtttonal
ewdence about condttuons that exusted at the statement ‘of financial- posntlon date
mctudmg the esttmates tnherent in'the process of preparing fi fil nancial statements
'Nonrecogmzed subsequent events are events that - provide: evidence. about
conditions ‘that did: not ‘existat’ the. statement of financial position: date 'biit ‘arose;
after that date., Management has evaluated- subsequent avents through Ogtobet:
22 2021 the: date the-fi nanctal staternents were availablé to be; issuéds

CLGd
e
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+CONSOUDATED SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL AEVENUES AND EXFENSES

Soase couts
Deact chard sesigtance
I-kind Dperees

\MANAGEMENT AND GENSRAL ALLOCATION

Mmiu-d'm und ghogrtl et
TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENIEY.

. Soe independant Auditors’ Repon.
2

-

Homa Energy
Brogremy

$ 4033040
1)0258 348

55,102

13

1947

£ _Samg
3 aBala7

25874
1M
0004

&7

.
17EA840

5530407
- 82,10

8161858

IS

b 32305

LA

"

1960
—taan
20030

£ 1518514
100,508

Meh
719
2,100

2110
12.004
2.4
2,200
$,150
1858

Beonomia i kipnagement
Homeles Housing Development Othar Total v

Eroorama Services Barvices Eregomy Excaren Sanerad-
¥ F 1] 3 4000 % TRSW? $ - §Fusend -3 exawm
4,001 240,471 - e 1,700.902 .
20,504 1,506,630 L 2r 1557,741 -
242978 - 180,072 114,104 LIk, ] .06
- - - 75, N -
ws b 2 » L L m
[ TN - . TRAM %010
a3 19,378 5 827 189.234 09,802

? ) N . 81 M

§. 5710100 8 zMqan 3__pr i . .

§ 401084 BTS00 §  MOMI 5 43038 $ 4011087 8 TN
ar.008 4).914 W, 248 D024 2é.80 12047
1440229 23870 85,883 - 150,183 1,497,103 46,5008
BT 51,308 29,780 28 220,357 0.0

0 1295 1,508 - [ 33
1.3% 409 - " 3,200 a.700
12,001 7,703 18,174 - 04,822 1
42054 04,431 ] wnr 1374007 20,518
117.087 038 . 7.820, 755,083 152,092

. E-.] ) T 1R (V1]

- . . - . 4,500

0483 57,481 14,208 4,800 134,120 43,000
£.003 42121 - 1,000 81,740 13918

- [ AB4 123 1w 1637

1,242 7% [ 13% 07248 207

- 01,224 . . 101,224, a0

- (33 : - 07 2,806
bo.gT2 11,80, 2488 40 112,688 2,579
125 ” 8 . 1n $1.000
3300 ETY -4 o - 1 4LOT? 81,004 .
L 243 L1233 LI8% 5,186 17,341,

- L] - - 98 2,787,

0.2 472 27K 1917 Ans1a LX-TR
12 9515 1133 - B1A9T" 079+
1,748 axe bt o) 0852 0,187 anz

- C-. 2,102 - 45711 .
394,003 718,703 18,731 14 1,242,119 120,088
4,126,100 12974, 24,300 1R B 1ISA12 -
- - - . C Bhatd -

. K .
5,516,002 201,083 821,784 150,430 17.901.203 1072
B o 215018 67,347 81,201 1,048,672 11,848.872)
$ a14000 § 3208 3 ep9dr 383170 10, 7 8 i

2N
Ieid

3 Radsiiier
2,700,002

183,741
£01,838




COMSOLIDATED BCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL REVENUES AND BXPENSES
EOR THE YEAR ENQUD MAY 39, J020 - .

Education Econamia )
Home Energy and 4 k ol Other Totsk - Manapemant 2020
* REVENUES _ . . L
" Goewrhment coninict § 451818 § 0NN § 1TRIS 5 B & TR0 $§ 2000 § 10180303 § A3 § e
Program service fes 32454 - 88,804 825,051 3,400 07,147 2508852 044 . 2005018
Rantal income . - 07,328 1,087,704 . . 1,185,032 - 1,185,032
Drvaionde 194 WOOMO L - - 1508 . . 1,808 L 1508
Suppor . 41,387 20,421 219,908 - 1nan7 114,840 S55.874 ZrT™ 910
Sponsorship ’ ’ - 6.809 e - . 19,737, . 20548
“intiret! ncome 12 7 132 2568 =) T "ame, 5208 D224
Forghoanass of debt . .. 85318 3020 . . 19,338 . T0.538
, Miscalaneous, 2,800, Mt 21,180 AN 19,460 - £24,007 Y] 148,013
rwkind contnbutions N 167,583 L i . - 187,653 - . 187,853
Total revenss LA R 22000 3 220350 P 2170040 0§ OB 0§ WTRD4Y  § LAENEM  § G2 B 1G4S
"EXPEN3ES. ) ’ . o
Payol . § AG7456  § 1074767 % x35005 0§ TME2M4 B AXSaT7 § 424014 . (A7TLESD) 0§ TIEM. 5 4804070
*Payrol s 3787 107,690 25,508 50,083 35,147 -3y 20,411 349,375
Emplayss banelits , N 412407 121,495 a0 85,002 12 1.221.273- 4501 1,206 204
Raticoment - 0,765 71,841 10,701 58,108 208 1973 214,094 84,115 274,200
Advertining 28 3,004 a3 2832 3,009 2,100 12,820 -, 5 13,217
. Barn Chanes. 4 . 7 LRITS - 54 ANy TAY 11,008
Baddetn " L 43 105 - . - 240, . 4,000 - 4,240
Compuier cont - 28.124 5,538 8,120 13,841 . 67.823 100,243 223,600
Conbraciul Tre.0sh 18,582 12,024 Ir.702 2,78 JJ4.250 S8 41,190 72
- 27,500 108,261 360,300 - 0913 512,072 150,280 .
Duar/registration [1dd s A05 484 . 1,040 0,720 11,080
Duplicabag . 7480 . . - - 7,480 5684 13,184
nsurance 8,067 13,010 24,500 10,880 Wz 5903 121,158 30,841 457,087
Jnworest : : . 7.198 1.527 30985 . . 61,710 114,881 108,59}
Meting v Conlerence sy 1042 22 43 1,118 2029 0,824 12,870 23,700
* MEACORENBOUT BXDONAE 1543 1,587 -] 44,188 4102 "W 4274 18,106 T
, Mincokanoous Lexess . . . 81,042 . . 81,942, = * 82,142
Equipment purchases : 24048 1848 . 8420 L. . 33,020 ‘30 33,080 «
Oifics wxpanes 20,07 R 4002 0148 10,400 » 5424, ERED) 18,690
Powtage 240 281 123 180 ‘252 . 1,085 24,447 25,612
Professions . -2.043 - 3,20 nne . 0% 34,865 KAV 123044
Stafl devalopment and aking - 2133 49 1208 a3 3,088 A 41787 10,281
- - - 04 . - () 1,801 1.898
Tolaphone 2,28 1,908 17,024 17.0% 1179 “H100 1T 41,001 83.780
Truresl % -] 18,210 10002 7.54% 30,583 "W el 103 . T0.880
Vahicle g2 5121 5574 0.8m 3849 9.808 a0 820 00,022
Rant s 8, - - e - 25,570 L. 26,570
‘Space cost - 174,312 152,400 580,375 2,600 ‘a0 1,112,644 00,048 1,213.300
\Dirnct cient Batstance 383,530 208,758 000,400 12,020 235124 At 4,102,250 - 4,302,250 »
Tindnd expenaes . 187,853 - - - - - 87,551 - 187,883
TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE - ..
GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 8,153,909 2.087,612 2.000,053 2.433,060 737,083 75,042 13,848,621 “1,781,042 18,810.£8)
on of Qament and ganeral axpannas -1 sara7e FirREL) 200,572 g3 [N ered LJereaz. (171 ded) :
.TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S 5800508 3 070488 8 2372779 0§ 2743732 5 BM4G? % BrageR 3 1561083 § - B asmss

Bea Mdepandant Aoditofs’ Report
. ' .o
»




" SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
©  EQRTYHE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 20631

N ASSIITANCE
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ LISTING
Special Supplemantal Nutrition Program for
Wom frifanls, wnc Children {WIC) 10.557
Chid and Adult Cars Focd Program 10,558
Food Distributlon Chater ) .
Commogity Supplemantsl Food Program ; . 10563
Cammodity Supplemantal Faod Program (Food Cemmodities) 10.564
Toti U,S. Dopartmant of Agricutturs
‘Emmcr Solubors Gran! Program 14.23)
.COVIC- 1§ Emargoncy Solutions Grant Frogrem 421
Supporive Houslng Program §4238
Sheller Plus Care’ 14,238
.Condintum of Care Program 14.267
Tota U.5. Department of Housing and Urban Davalopment
‘WIOA Cluster ..
"WAOA Adult Program . . 17.288
WIOA Dislocaiec Worker Farmuls Grants 12.218
Totsl U5, Depaninant of LavorAIOA Chusser
. p fapents f min
' Fommuia Grants jor Rursl Areet . 20.504
Tranal Services Programe Chastir
" Enhinged Mobikty of Senion, and Indhviduaste with Dissziitas 20513
Total U.5, Depariment of Trensporiation Federsl Transit Admuissusn (FTA)
r * - "
LS. Degariment of Treavyry
* Cosondvirus Rallet Fund 21,00
Corpriavirus Ratlef Fund 240
Cornvirus Reliat Fund 25019
Coronvirus Relef Fund 21,019

PASS-THROUGH

‘Biats of NH, Deparimant of Heith & Humas Services
<Sum ot HH, Departmam of Educaton

Stale of NH, Depariment of Healil & Human Sarvices
Community Adtion Progrsm Bansp-Merrimack Covntiey

*Stata of NH, DHHS, Buresu of Homelass L Housing
Stoce of MH, DHHS, Buresy of Homaiss 4 Housing

Surte of NH, DHHS, Bursy of Homaless & Housing
.State of NH, DIHHS, Buveay of Homaless & Houaing
Stale of NH, DHHS, Burssw of Homelets R Housing

Southem NH Sanvces
- Bouthem NH Services

Ewa of NH, Depariment 61 Transportation

Gtata of HH, Department ¢f Tranaporiation

Stats of HH, DHHS, Dwiaion of Evonceis & Housing
Stvilty .
New Hampshire Housing
Néw Hampshire Howsing
*Manadnock Devélopmentisl Services, Inc.

Sar Nél_u_!b Schedule of:E_lpﬂpHurI_t_o_l F’l_d_l'rll f\_m_m

ES

010-000-52600000—10‘1{00134 . $ 15840

UnXnown .- 185379
016-000-52800000- 102-800714 ] . Rd0D

Unitnown . 207,800 205200

3 M8 428

05-65-65-658710-717600000- 10280711 " § 142200
DA5-42-423010-79270000 , 2600 & 8369
£4-05-95-958310-7 17800000-107-8073 4 118879
05-95-93-058310-7 17600000-102-80731 - 00,035
05-05-95-9583 10-7 17800000~ 0280733 371,328
3 peasy
Unkaown L5 35450 )
Unknown - 11.255. 3 48,704
s L 48,708
04-08-08-934010-2018- 5 481482
DA-45-0-504010-2918 . 50812
3 531,984
85-2021-BH3-03-HOUSHG4 5 22107
Shaker Decomprsasion 121,814
hetter Decompreseion -51,828
tong Term Core Stabitration Progrém: JBADSO: 3 - 244R077

i



$CHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
" EQR THE YEAR ENDED MAY. 21, 2021

- ASSISTANCE .
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ LITING PASS.THROUGH
“Ah8, Dyparimem of Tegasury fcontinyedd
Emergancy Ransl Axsistance Progaim 21.023  New Hampehire Housing
Total U.5. Daparsannt of Treasury
Disasiar Assistance Loand « 50.008  Direct Awsrd
‘Tots U3 Gmall Buiibess Administation’
W4, Deperinent ol Epargy .
Wesinarization Aasistance ko Low-incoeiy Pursons 21,042  Siste of NH, Office of Enargy & Planaing.
Total U.5. Cupatiment of Energy
Agint} Chustar . . L
*Special Pregrama for tha Aging, Tioa Y, Part B, L .
Grants for Supporivs Services and Senior Centwre “ #3044 Siateof NH, Office of Ensrgy & Planning
Special Programa far the Aging, Tide i, Part 8, .
Giants lor Supporive Services snd Sarvicr Contars 83044 Suneof NH, DHHS, Bureau of Ekterly & Adul Bervices
TANF Chater . ) .- )
Tamporaty Adslitance for Néedy Fomites . 03558 Southan NH Servicas
Low ngoma Hama Energy Assistance {Fuel Astisisoce) 83,568 Swiw ol NH, Ofica ol Enery & Planning
Low inoorne’ Home Enargy Assisiance (BWP} - 83564  Stale of NH, Qttice of Energy & Pranning .
hl L &tata of NH, DHMS, Adminisirstion for Chilcran &
COLH Low comw Homa Enargy Ackigiaics - 91508 Fiymias, Office of Comumunily Sersces
Cominunity Services Block Qrant 933500  Suie of MM, DHHS, Oiv. ¢ Family Assistanca
. . - . ) Siztw'of HH, DHHS, Divislon of Ecoromic & Housing
CQVID-19 Commundy Sarvicod Block Grami $3.589:  Siabiry
Commurity Sarvices Block Gaant - Discretionary $2570 St of MH, DHHE, Dir. of Formly Assistance

Swa Notds to Scheduta of Expenditurs of Fydsrsl Awards
k]

EIDL #1272702008

010202401 0-7708-07 4600587

01-02024010-7708-074.500587
05-0548481010-7272

uﬁmﬁ

01-02402:024010-7 F050000-500587
01-0142-9?4010-77MW

<Giant F2001HHELCS
Bog7at
00731

=

FEDERAL
] 1,184.828
3 3,833.165

150,000
8 150,000
$ 257,108,
) 257,109
4087
F1 T 42798
. Jaadr
4,153,400
158,764
40748 e 432010
387,841
sy ‘snrar
20852



ACUTHWESIERN GOMMUNITY AERVIGES, INC,
$CHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
EQR.THE YEAR ENOED MAY 3}, 2021 :

. LASIISTANCE
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ USTING PASS-THROUGH
HUMBER SRANTGRG HAME
] A '

Haad Start Cluster -

Tiowd St . - §3800  .Direct Funding

COVIC- 18 Hewd Stant, 91800  Dirsct Funding

Totah U.S. Departmant of Health & Human Sarvices:
Emergéncy Fod and Shofier Nabonal Bosrd Program 97.024 -5tz of MH, DHHS, Ot6os of Human Services

Total 1.5, Departmens of Hometana Secuty

TOTAL ’
-
-

Bua Holes to Scheduls of Expendltures of Federal Awards
‘a

RRANTORS NUMBER *

L0ICHO11404
*01HEO0OI38

FEDERAL
s 2401431 .
131,202 1 I 2552831
] 7,102 300
] 11008
| ST, ]
14,054,808



NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

‘NOTE 4

1NOTES TO $CHEDULE OF: EXPENDITURES OF. FEDERAL*AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY-31,.2021 12021

=BASIS OF PRESENTAT!ON ,

'The accompanymg -schedule .of expendltures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
inciudes: the’ federal award activity - of Solithwestern. Commumty Sefvices, lInc
under programs of- the federal government for the: year ‘ended- May 31, “2021 aThe

mformatlon in; thas Schedule is presented in accordance with the' requlrements of -

Tltle 2 US .Code of Federal Regulatnons ‘Part ‘200, Uniform Admm:stratrve
;Requrrements .Cdst Principles, and Audit Requrrements “for Federa! Awards
‘(Uruforrn Gurdance) Because the -Schédule presents only a selected portlon ‘of

the operatlons of Southwestem Commumty Services, Inc., it is- not intended tor
and.does not present;the ﬁnanma! ‘position; changes :in net. assets or: cagh: flows:
of the‘Organlzatlon

‘SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING. POLICIES

Expendltures reported - on” the- Schedule are,. reported on the. accrual basis. ‘of

*‘.accountmg Such expend|tures are recognlzed followmg the . cost pnnciples

- bt

'allowable or are Ilmited as to relmbursement »

)

INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern’ Community Sgrvices, Inc ‘has elected ‘not fo use the ten’ percent.

de minimig mdlrect ‘cost rate aIIowed under the Unrform Guudance

FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is. reporled in-the :Scéhedule at the fair-value’ of the
commodities received'and dlsbursed

Ssu BRECIPIENTS

May-31;2021:,

3T
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROLn

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE ‘AND, OTHER' MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDIT!NG STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Communtty Services, Inc.
|Keene New Hampshlre

We have audlted 'ln’accordance with the audltlng standards‘generally accepted in the, United:
~'States of America and, the" stafidards appllcabte to ‘finantial audits contained iin Govemment
~Audltrng Standards issued by thé Comptroller. Gengral of:the United States, .fhe ‘consolidated .,

f nanc1at statements of Southwestem Communlty Serwces. rInc (a New Hampshlre nonprof t

1Fnancial statements and have ISSLle our report thereon dated October 22 2021

.internal Control Over Financial‘Reportmg

In_planning. and- performing our-audit of the- consohdated financial statements we: c:onsideredl
Southwestem Communlty Services, Int's, intemat contro!l over: financial reportmg (mtemal
control) to detérming the: audlt procedures that are ‘appropriaté in.the ‘circumstances for- the,
;purpose of, expressing -our oplnlon on the. consolidated 'fi nanclal statements. but. not for .the.
purpose of expressing an oplnion of.the effectweness of Southwestern Communtty Sewices -
Inc.'s: internal control, .Accordlngly, wé ‘do not, express an ‘opinien on ‘the. effectlveness of
Southwestem Communlty Serwces Inc s interrial control

.management or emptoyees |n the normal course of : performing thelr assigned functlons to.
wprevent, or .detect and :correct, misstatements,on a timeély basis.. A matarial’ 'weakness:is_a
deﬂcuency. or. comblnatlon of defitiencles, in intemal:control, such that there’ isa reasonable :
ipOSSIblllty that amaterial misstatement of the: entltys consolidated financial statements. will: not
‘be prevented or detected and’ corrected, on a tlmely basis. A srgn:ﬁcant deﬁclency i~ a.
defi iciency, 'or -  Gofribination of deficiericles, In internal” coitro!. that is less severe! than at
1mater|al weakness yet important enough o merit attentlon by:those charged with, govemance-



Our consrderatron of ithe "intetnal. control was for the limited purpose descnbed A the ﬁrs{
paragraph of: thls ‘§ection.and’ was ‘not designed to identify all defrcrencues in intemal control
that might beﬁmatenal weaknesses or significant_ déficiencies.. leen these’ Ilmrtatlons -dufting; -
our audit'we dld not |dent|fy any deficiéncies In mtemal control that we consider to- be- matenal
weaknesses However rnatenal weaknesses may exrst that have not been |dent|f ed.

Comgl_r_nce and Other Matters .-

“As_part of obtaining. reasonable assurance about whether’ Southwestem Commumty Sewrces '
Inc.'s’ consolrdated fi nancral statements are free-of material mrsstatement WE: perforrned tests
‘of its complrance with certain provrslons of laws, regulatrons contracts, and grant agreements
'noncomphance with whlch could ‘have a difect -and materal effect .of the. determlnatron of.
consolidated finandial statément.armounts. However,. providing .an. opimon on complrance wrth
those provrsrons was not an objective of our audrt and accordrngly, we do not ¢ express such: an '
oprnron The results of our tests drsctosed no lnstances of noncompllance or other matters that
are. requrred to be reported under Government Audmng Standards

rrrrrr

nPumose of this Report
“The’ purpose. of this report ds solely to. descnbe the scope of our testlng of intemnal control and:
complrance and the results of that testrng and not to provide an oprnron an‘the eﬁectrvsness of.
‘the Organrzatron S mternal control or.on: complrance This report is an-integral part. of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards: in consrderlng« the
Organrzatron S mternal control and complrance Accordingly, this communrcatron is: not swtab[e
‘for any: other purpose

' October 22 &2021
Wolfeboro New Hampshire
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”INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON.COMPLIANCE
"FOR EACH.MAJOR. PROGRAM AND.ON INTERNAL CONTROL:
'OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

[ —————

“To the Board of Directors. of'

'Sotithwestern Community:S Servrces JInc.
Keene, New Hampshiré

“Report on Compliance for Each Major. Federal Program.

‘We_ have audited Southwestern™-Communify Services;. IAc's (a New Hampshlre nonproft
- cofporation). comipliance. with the types-of comphance ‘requirements “described in the. ‘OMB;
-Compliance - Supplement that-could have a direct and material effect on each of Southwestern®
“Community- . Services; ilnc s major federal programs. for the yea_r.e,nde_d May- 31, 2021,

:Southwestern' Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs -are identified in the summary ‘of
audltors results section-of the: accompanying schedule’of findings and questioned costs

‘Managément's:Responsibili

.Management is respansible -for, comphance With-the federal Statutés, regulattons and the, ierms.l
wand eondltlons ofits federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

. Auditors” Responsibilitv

Our responsmrlrty iS to express.:an oprmon on-compliance:-for each of Southwaestem- Community “
*Services, slnc s major federal programs: based on ‘our ‘audit of .the types of ‘compliance
requirements ‘referred ‘to above. We, conducted- our audnt of .compliance in accordance with.
-auditing standards. generaily accepted in.the'United-States of Amarica; the standards:applicable to
financial audits contalned in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the*Comptrotler Genéral
.of "the' United ~States;” and Titler 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part. 200, Uniform
Admmrstratlve Requfrements Cost Pn‘ncrples and “Audit Requrrements for Féderal” Awards
{Uniform ‘Guidance); Those standards and the Uniform, Guidance require that we; plan and;perform
the-‘audit o' obtain reasonable -assurance: about whather noncompliance ‘with_ the typés .of
compliance requrrements referréd to-abové that.could have a direct and matérial'effect on'a major’
‘federal: program -occurred. An “audit Includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about

‘Southwesterii Community Servrces Inc's: compllance with those requurements and performlng
such other’ procedures aswe consrdered necessary in the circumstances:

We 'beheve that‘ our audit provrdes a réasonable basis for-our’ opinion on compllance for each

“major- federal - -program;  However," ' our- ‘audit..does not provide a Iegai determinatton\'of
Souihwestem Commuinity: Servuces i|l'ic '$ compliance.

'Opinion ‘on Each ‘Major" Federal. Program

Jn our oplnion, “Southwestern Community. Services, Inc. complled in.all materiat re ects with the.
compliance’ requirements referred to above that could have a direct and. matenai effect on. each of f
tits’ major federal. progrems for. the year'ended May 31, 2021

40



Report on. Intemal Control Over Complnance

Managementa of Southwestermn” Community- Services, Inc is responsnble for establlshlng and
mamtammg‘ effectlve Intemal*control .over.compliance with: the types ‘of compllance requlrements
rfeferred to abdve. In plannlng and performmg -ouf raudit “of complrance wé considéred,
‘Southwestérn . Commuinity Services, Inc:'s .internal control .over compllance with the ‘typés_.of
reqwrements that ‘could have a. direct and materal _effect .on each major ‘federal program tor
»determlne the auditmg procedures that are appropnate in the cifcumstances for {he. purpose. of
‘expressing an oplnlon on_compliance for each major federal program and to’ ,test and report ‘on;
fintarnal contro! gver compllance in -atcordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the puUrpose’
-of éxpressing,an. opinion’on the effectivenéss of intemal control over compllance Accordlngly, we.
.do not express’ an opinion on ‘the effectiveness of Southwestem ‘Community: Serwces Inc.'s’
internal control over compllance

A deficiency In internal.contfol over.compliance exists- when the design or operatlon of a control:
-over comphance ‘does -not allow management or employees in the- normal course of performlng
their assigned functions, to  prevent, .of detect.and’ correct, noncompliance with a type jof
.compliance: reqmrement of a‘federal program‘on-a timely.basis: A-material weaakness' in internal
;:control over compl:ance is a“def iciency, of .combination of deﬂclenmes in’ interrial -control over
-compliarice, such that there is a feasohable possrblhty that material. noncomphance with.a type of
compliance requurement of a fedéral progranT will not-bé, prevented; or détécted and cofrected; on;
& timely basis. A  signifi cant def iciency .in intérnal .cantrol -over compliance is .a defi iciency, or &+
combination of def iciencies,. in internal control over compliance with & type of -compliance -
requirement ‘of a federal .program that'is less.severe thah a material weakngss:in. ‘internal‘control
over cornpllance yet Important enough to merit attention. by those charged with’ ‘governance..

-Qur:consideration of intérial control over- compllance was for the limited purpose described in, the
first paragraph.of this-séction. and:was not designed to identify all deficiencies in mternal control
over compliance that. might: be Material weaknessgs or sugnlf cant deficiencies: We did. not identify.
any deficiencies in' internal control over«comphance that we consider to be- matenal weaknesses
‘However, material weaknesses. may: exist that.were not identified -

The purpose of.this feport on-intefnal Control. over compliangé i$: solely to déscribe the scope of
our testing: of internal control over- complrance and-the results’ of that ‘testing. based - on the:
requurements of the Unlforrn Guidance.” Accordlngly, this report is not smtable for any other’
purpose

October: 22 ~2021‘
Wolfeboro New Harmpshire:

‘A



"SCHEDULE OF° FINDINGS AND- QUESTIONED COSTS:
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY" 31 -2021

SUMMARY.OF AUDITORS" RESULTS
17 The auditors’ repoft expresses an unmodified opinion bf] whether the consohdated financial
statements ‘of Southweéstérn. Commiunity Servrces ‘Inc. and related companies ‘were
_ prepared in accordance wrth GAAP ‘

2. No -significant’ deflclenmes disclosed. dunng the audit -of the consolidated Fnancral
statements” are: reportéd_in the Independent Auditors’ ‘Report on . lnternal Control ‘Over:
- Financial Reporting-and ‘on. Compliance and -Other Matters, Based oh an-Audit of Financial -

Stateménts Performed-in Accordance: with Governiment Auditing Standards:: No material
weaknesses are reported

3.. No ifistances. of noncompllance matérial -to the ccnsohdated financial statements of
Southwestern Communlty Services, Inc. and télatéd’ .companies, which would be requiréd
:o be reported.in: accordance with- Govarnment Auditing ‘Standards were: d|sclosed ‘during
the: audit

NG« s:gnlt" cant defi ciencres in intemal.-contiol .over major federal award programs are
: reported in the Indépendent-Auditors' Report on Compliance for’ Each. Major Prograr: and-
on. .’ntema! Control Over Compliance Required by .the” Uniform Guidance. ‘No ‘material
weaknesses are reported

e

Sf 'The audttors feport on compllance for the. major federal, award .programs, far. Southwestem'a
4Community Serwces Inc expresses an-uhmodified opinion’ 6Aall major federal -programs.

6 -'There were no audlt fi ndmgs that are requwed ta' be reported i accordance with. 2 CFR'
" section’ 200. 516(a)

T, The programs: tested : ds major programs were 4U:S. Department of Health and Human-
-Services; Low: !ncome Home-Energy Assistance;- 193:568, Community. Services Block Grant,
.93.569, and Head Start,- 93.600; and. U.S. Department of Treasury; Coronavirus -Religf
Fund 21 :019, and- Emergency Rehtat Assistance Program,-21.023;

e

3Th_e,t_hre,shold “for-dls_ti_ngwshlng; Type'A and B-prog,rams was $7,50,0QO':_'

Southwestem Communiity Services, Inc. was detérmiined to be-a low-risk auditee. -
FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
None-

[FINDINGS AND-QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRANS AUDIT

" None:
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.\SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR' AUDIT FINDINGS
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31 2021

There wereg no findings.or quéstioned costs.that were.required-to .be reported in the Schedute
of. Flndlngs and Questioned 'Costs for the year ended May 31, 2020.



CONSTITUENT
SECTOR

PRIVATE
SECTOR

PugLIC
SECTOR

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.
Board of Directors - 2021 Composition

CHESHIRE COUNTY SuLuvaN COUNTY
Mary Lou Huffling
Ron Nason Fall Mountain Emergency Food
SCS Tenant Shelf

Brianna Trombi
Had Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

Alstead Friendly Meals

Anne Beattie
Newport Service Organization

Kevin Watterson, Chair

Clarke Companies (retired)

Dominic Perkins
Savings Bank of Walpole

David Edkins

" Town of Walpole

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education
River Valley Community College

Jay Kahn
State Senator, District 10

Beth Fox

Assistant City Manager/
Human Resources Director
City of Keene

Derek Ferland
Sullivan County Manager

Open




KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Office of Strategic Intitiatives

Agency Name: Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Program Name:BWP_PY22

Annual Salary Of Key Percentage o It
_ . Administrative Salary Paid By |.:Al
|Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel Personnel Contract
Beth Daniels, Chief Executive Officer $107.016 0.00%}
Gabre! Leonard, Energy Conservation Manager $60,000

12.00%[:




Beth Daniels

Experience
Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH

Chief Executive Officer 07/01/2021-Present
¢ Responsible for the overall operations of the agency -
s Supervise Senior Leadership
¢ Participate in the NH Community Action Association

Chief Operating Officer 03/2016-07/01/2021
e Responsible for all day-to-day program operations of the agency
¢ Supervise Program Directors, including WIC, Energy, and Housing Stabilization
e Ensure that all state and federal regulations are followed while those in need receive a smooth delivery
of service -
Director of Energy and Employment Programs 10/2008 - 12/2016
o Oversee all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor,
"~ Senior Energy Assistance, Weatherization, HRRP, CORE, and Assurance 16 as well as the employment
programs Workplace Success, Work Experience Program, and WIA.,
Workforce Development Director 11/2006 - 10/2008
e Supervise, direct, coach, and encourage staff of six within four programs
¢ Collaborate with agency staff, community members and state contract holders to achieve common goals,
including agency name recognition and program success
s Perform all SCS Program Director tasks including PPRs and budget management

Second Start, Concord, NH

Career Development Specialist 11/2004 - 03/2006
Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises

» Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the job search process

¢ Maintained participant records and completed reporting requirements

e Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and learning styles

Nina’s Family Daycare, Swanzey, NH 10/2003 — 1172004
Daycare Provider \ '

s Responsible for meal planning, payment records, supplies, and activities

s Acquired CPR & First Aid certification

Southwestern Communi'ty Services, Inc., Keene, NH -
Case Manager, Homeless Services 09/2002 - 10/2003
« Responsible for all daily operations of housing program, rules, and regulations
e Completed weekly and monthly progress reports
¢ Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes
Case Manager, Welfare-to-Work 05/2000 - 09/2002
e Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
¢ Gained working knowledge of Department of Health & Human Services, Immigration & Naturalization
Services, community agencies, and SCS



Education and Training
Results Oriented Management & Accountability (ROMA)

Grant Writing Workshop
Cheshire County

Nonviolent Crisis Intervention
Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training
Tad Dwyer Consulting

Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers
CareerTrack

How to Supervise People
CareerTrack

Career Development Facilitator Training
National Career Development Association
120-hour NCDA training

Certified Workforce Development Specialist
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

Infection Control & Bloodborne Pathogens
Home Health Care

Bachelor of Arts in Human Serviceé
Franklin Pierce College

Graduated cum laude

References Available

2016-2017

.05/201 2
2012
2010-2011
11/2007
11/2007

09/2005

06/2005
01/2003

05/2002



Gabriel Leonard

506 Cross Road Ph: 603.454.4543
Goghen, NH 03742 : e-mail; gabriel_s_leonard@yahooc.com
Protessional Summary

Strong client services, employee management, organizational, and problem solving skills in a fast-paced
environment, seeking employment with a company of shared standards and values.

Employment History .
Southwestern Community Services, Energy Conservation Director Aug2016-Present

* Responsible for all day to day operations of the Energy Conservation Programs
+ Ongoing communication with the statewide Weatherization network
e Ongoing Program Director responsibilities, including supervision of staff

All Seasons Construction Corp. {Springfield, VT) Assistant Project Manager . Nov2015-2016

+ Responsible for supporting Project Manager in the planning, management direction, project completion,
client satisfaction, and financial outcome of assigned construction projects.

Create estimates within Sage project management software.

Supports the Project Manager functions such as monthly forecasts, estimating, and budgeting.

Assists in ensuring that all documentation meets internal standards, procedures and specifi catlons
Ensures good, transparent and effective reporting and documentation.

Delivers all documents in a timely manner so that progress can be fully communicated.

Communicates with Site Manager for site project documentations.

Responsible for verifying blueprints and construction process on multiple build phases.

New Hampshire Employment Security (Claremont, NH) DVOP Employment Specialist Jan2015-Nov2015

» Disabled Veterans' Qutreach Program (DVOP) Specialist facilitated workforce services for veterans,
others eligible and employers. '

» Provided specialized workforce services for veterans, especially veterans with barriers to employment,
i.e., job development services for veterans, refer veterans to employmentftraining opportunities, provide
counseling/guidance, and assist veterans with other workforce services (resume assistance, labor
market infarmation, job search workshops, one-stop career center orientation, etc.).

HURLEY OFFICE SOLUTIONS {Randoiph, VT) Project Manager Nov 2009-Sep2014

¢ Provided site supervision on a diverse range of commercial ofﬁce installation projects. Tailored customn
solutions to customer needs.

« Managed, hired and trained a team of seven employees. Created and implemented a customer service
standard for the organization.

» Developed relationships with third party sales representatives to sell Hurtey Office Solutions' services.

¢ Negotiated bids, responded to RFPs and successfully closed contracts.

* Analyzed the business and marketplace and created a strategic plan for the organization that included
new marketing, human resources, job site and documentation plans.

BASIC PSA (Johnstown, PA/ Kennebunk, ME) Snubber Removal & Reinstallation Technician

vC Summer Nuclear Power Station Oct 2012 - Nov 2012
Susquehanna Nuclaar Power Station Mar 2012 - Apr 2012

. Evaluated, removed & reinstalled nuclear snubbers, mechanical and hydraulic shock absorbers, to
prevent unwanted activity during scheduled power outages paymg close attention to all safety protocols
and procedures.



IBZ CONTRACTING (Spring Valley, NY) Heavy Equipment Operator- Jul 2008 - Aug 2009

» Managed heavy equipment for a waterfront restoration and worked closely with EPA inspectors and
project engineers.

FULLTIME MANAGEMENT (New York, NY) Property Manager Jan 2008 - May 2008

¢ Managed multiple residential properties, with responsibilities incldding general upkeep, small repairs
and tenant relations. ,

FINESTKIND HANDYCRAFTSMEN (Kitsap County, WA) Proprietor Dec 2004 - Jan 2007

+ Coordinated contracts for construction, successfully managed crew and contracts to ensure timely and
satisfactory completion of projects.

« Provided services including finish carpentry, masonry, drywall, interior / exterior painting, residential
electrical and plumbing, landscaping, roofing, and decking.

UNITED STATES NAVY (Bremerton, WA & San Diego, CA) Nov 2002 - Dec 2007
USS John C Stennis, CVN 74, Kitsap Navy Base & Coronado Navy Base

Aviation Ordnance Specialist Supervisor Nov 2004 - Dec 2007
Aviation Ordnance Specialist . Nov 2002 - Nov 2004

-« Instructed, supervised and evaluated the performance of 60 personnel and oversaw $1 billion plus of
highly sensitive weapons and navy specific heavy equipment.
» Communicated effectively in diverse and hostile environments, both with personnel and upper

management under stressful conditions.

Education ‘

GRANITE STATE COLLEGE (Concord, NH) B.S. Business Management, GPA 3.72 magna cum laude 2014

CPR CERTIFIED NATIONAL HEART ASSOCIATION 2014

ASSOCIATED TRAINING SERVICES (Portsmouth, NH) Heavy Equipment Operation School 2008

NAVY LEADERSHIP PROGRAM (USS John C Stennis, CVN 74} | 2004



